Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Pensions Committee

THURSDAY, 17TH SEPTEMBER, 2009 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD,
WOOD GREEN, N22 8LE.

PLEASE NOTE: THE ADVISOR WILL BRIEF ALL MEMBERS OF THE PENSIONS
COMMITTEE, PRIOR TO THE MEETING, AT 18:30HRS.

MEMBERS: Councillors C. Harris (Chair), Thompson (Vice-Chair), Beacham, Mallett,
Wilson, Winskill and Cooke

IN ATTENDANCE: Howard Jones, Roger Melling, Earl Ramharacksingh and David Corran

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. Late items
will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
considered under agenda item 13 for unrestricted items and item 16 for exempt items
of urgent business.



3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
license, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.

MINUTES (PAGES 1 - 8)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the Pensions Committee meeting held on 18 June
2009.

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2008/09 AND REPORT TO THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE IN 2008/09

Report of Grant Thornton, the Council’s appointed auditor of the Pension Fund.
QUARTERLY ASSET ALLOCATION REVIEW (PAGES 9 - 22)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to include a report from the Fund’s investment
advisors, Hewitt’s.

FUND PERFORMANCE REPORT (PAGES 23 - 40)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to consider the latest investment performance
data for the Pensions Fund and for each of the Fund’s investment managers, to
compare responsible investments information provided by our Fund Managers with
that supplied by LAPFF and to report 2009/10 budget monitoring to the end of July
2009.

ATTENDANCE BY FUND MANAGERS

Attendance by Fund Managers for presentations and questions from Trustees, the
Advisor to Trustees and the Chief Financial Officer.

8:00pm — Capital International
8:30pm — Fidelity



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

CONSULTATION DRAFT -'LGPS - DELIVERING AFFORDABILITY, VIABILITY
AND FAIRNESS' (PAGES 41 - 64)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to formulate a response to the consultation draft.

FUND ADMINISTRATION REPORT (INCLUDING REVIEW OF AVC PROVIDERS)
(PAGES 65 - 72)

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive, People and Organisational Development to
consider regulatory changes affecting the administration of the Local Government
Pension Scheme together with relevant issues covered in circulars issued by the
Local Government Pensions Committee (LGPC) and Department for Communities
and Local Government (DCLG).

CESSATION OF ADMISSION AGREEMENT WITH WORKFORCE FACILITIES LTD
(PAGES 73 - 76)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Chief Executive, People and
Organisational Development, to report on the funding position attributable to
Workforce Facilities Ltd on their cessation as an admitted body to the Haringey
Pension Fund at 7" May 2009.

ADMISSION AGREEMENT FOR EUROPA LTD (PAGES 77 - 80)
Report of the Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Chief Executive, People and
Organisational Development to approve the admission of Europa Workspace
Solutions Ltd as transferee admitted body participating in the Haringey Council
Pension Fund from 8th April 2009.
NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
The following item is likely to be the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as it contains exempt information as defined in Section 100a
of the Local Government Act 1972; namely information relating to the business or
financial affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that
information).

EXEMPT MINUTES (PAGES 81 - 82)

To confirm and sign the exempt minutes of the Pensions Committee meeting held on
18 June 2009.

ANY EXEMPT ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS



Yuniea Semambo

Head of Local Democracy and Member Services
5" Floor

River Park House

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

Helen Jones

Principal Committee Coordinator
Tel: 020 8489 2615

Fax: 020 8489 2660

Email: Helen.jones@haringey.gov.uk

Wednesday, 9 September 2009



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 18 JUNE 2009

Councillors C. Harris (Chair), Thompson (Vice-Chair), Beacham, B. Harris, Mallett

Apologies

and Wilson

Councillor Winskill, David Fishman and Roger Melling

Also Present: Howard Jones (Independent Advisor to Trustees) and Earl

Ramharacksingh

MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY
PRPP88.| APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Clir Winskill, for whom Clir
Oakes was substituting.

Apologies for absence were also received from David Fishman and
Roger Melling.

PRPP89.

URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business.

PRPP90.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Clir Wilson declared a personal interest in respect of his employment by
the National Association of Pension Funds.

Cllr Thompson declared a personal interest in respect of his membership
of the Haringey Pension Scheme. He also declared a personal interest in
respect of his attendance at training events and conferences, to which
some of the Fund Managers may have directly contributed.

Clir C. Harris declared a personal interest as a contributing member to
the Haringey Pension Scheme.

Cllr B. Harris declared a personal interest as a contributing member to
the Haringey Pension Scheme.

Clir Mallett declared a personal interest as a contributing member to the
Haringey Pension Scheme.

PRPP91.

MINUTES

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting of the Pensions Committee held on 19



Page 2

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 18 JUNE 2009

March 2009 and the special meeting of the Pensions Committee held on
30 April 2009 be approved and signed by the Chair.

PRPP92.

PENSION FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING
31 MARCH 2009, AUDIT PLAN AND BUDGET 2009/10

Martin Grundy and Matthew Cass from Grant Thornton presented a
report on the audit plan for the Pension Fund accounts, which were now
to be audited separately from the Council’s main accounts in line with
Government guidance. The audit approach was outlined in the report.

The Chair asked for further information about the additional fee and the
extra work necessitated by the separate audit of the Pension Fund
accounts. Grant Thornton reported that the fee was a standard fee
imposed by the Audit Commission. As the Pension Fund audit no longer
formed part of the overall Council audit, it was reported that additional
pension-specific work was required in order to provide a specific audit
opinion on the Pension Fund. It was clarified that payment for the audit
of the Pension Fund accounts was not charged to the Pension Fund
when the audit formed part of the overall Council audit, but that the
separate audit would be charged to the Pension Fund.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding governance
arrangements, Grant Thornton reported that the separate account would
ultimately be the responsibility of the Council, and that specific issues
included within the Pension Fund accounts would be reported back to
the Committee by Grant Thornton as part of their audit work. Grant
Thornton reported that they would provide the Committee with an interim
report and a final report on the audit, and that the Committee could also
request work on any specific areas of concern.

The Chief Financial Officer presented the Pension Fund financial
statements and budget. In response to a question from the Committee
regarding the level of cash holdings, it was confirmed that this was partly
due to funds earmarked for strategic allocation, with the investment of
these funds having taken longer than anticipated due to market
conditions and was also influenced by pending purchases and sales by
Fund Managers. The Committee was advised that the cash holdings
represented less than 2% of the Fund and therefore were not considered
to be too high.

In response to a question as to whether there were any issues to report
in respect of the admitted and scheduled bodies contributing to the
Fund, the Chief Financial Officer reported that there were no issues in
respect of the financial statements.

On a motion by the Chair it was:
RESOLVED

i) That the Pension Fund’s financial statements for 2008/09 be
approved.




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 18 JUNE 2009

ii) That the Audit Plan of Grant Thornton be agreed.
iii) That the proposed fee of £38,500 be approved.

iv) That the Pension Fund’s budget for 2009/10 be approved.

PRPP93.

ACTUARIAL FUNDING UPDATE AS AT 31 MARCH 2009

Bryan Chalmers of Hymans Robertson presented a report on the interim
valuation of the Pension Fund, the full formal valuation of which would
be carried out as at end of March 2010. Mr Chalmers reported that the
present economic situation was challenging for all pension funds. The
Committee was advised that the funding level had been 77.7% in 2007
and had reduced to 53% at 31 March 2009, although there had been
some improvement since then. The Committee was advised that
investment performance over the previous two years accounted for the
change in funding level.

Mr Chalmers discussed the options available for addressing the funding
gap, and reported that any change in employer contribution rates would
not be considered until 2011/12, a year after the full valuation. The
investment of different types of asset class to reduce the funding deficit
was also discussed.

In response to a question from the Committee, Mr Chalmers confirmed
that the employee contribution rate could not be changed as this was
fixed nationally by the Government, but that the employer contribution
rate could be amended. Mr Chalmers reported that the introduction of
cost-sharing measures to enable contribution rises to be shared between
employers and employees might mean that increases in employee
contribution rates could be possible in future.

The Committee asked about protecting the Fund, and Mr Chalmers
advised that the affordability and stability of the employer contributions
needed to be considered, along with the need for good stewardship and
prudence. The Fund’'s actuaries would produce different models in
advance of the full valuation in 2010 to try to identify the best approach
for the long term benefit of the Fund.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the Haringey
Pension Fund’s funding position in relation to other local authority
pension funds, Mr Chalmers estimated that Haringey fell within the lower
third quartile for funding levels. Mr Chalmers clarified that the capacity in
which the actuary was working was as advisor to the Trustees of the
Pension Fund and not the London Borough of Haringey as an employer.

The Committee asked about the way in which assumptions about
investment performance were made, in response to which Mr Chalmers
advised that historical investment performance would be looked at as
part of the assessment of whether the investment performance
assumptions were reasonable. In response to a question from the




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 18 JUNE 2009

Committee regarding the level of data looked at in the analysis of
liabilities, Mr Chalmers reported that membership of a service called
Club Vita would provide access to in-depth analysis of membership data
at a much greater level of detail than the standard mortality figures and
that it was hoped that a proposal to join Club Vita would be presented to
London Borough pension schemes in due course.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRPP94.

QUARTERLY ASSET ALLOCATION REVIEW

The Chief Financial Officer introduced the report on asset allocation. The
Committee had previously looked at asset allocation in principle, and this
was the first report looking at whether there would be any benefit to the
Fund in making an adjustment to the asset allocation at this time. It was
the decision of the Committee whether they wished to take any action or
not.

Hewitt presented their analysis of the general market conditions and
their recommendations for changes to the Fund’s portfolio. Hewitt
recommended an increased exposure to corporate bonds relative to
gilts, as it was anticipated that these would have a greater yield, and
reported that they still advised a cautious position in respect of equities
for the time being. Hewitt also reported that they anticipated
opportunities to invest in property later in the year, but recommended no
changes in position in respect of property for the present. It was noted
that it was Hewitt’'s role as advisors to provide the Committee with
information on all the options available to them, even if these were areas
the Committee did not wish to pursue.

In response to a question from the Committee about how the suggested
increase in corporate bonds should be funded, Hewitt suggested that 2%
be moved from conventional gilts to corporate bonds.

In response to a question from Howard Jones, independent advisor to
the Trustees, Hewitt reported that their position on the default and
downgrade risk for corporate bonds was lower than the market
consensus at present, but was in line with the market over a 10 year
period.

Clir Bob Harris left the meeting at 20:30hrs.

In response to a question from the Committee, Hewitt reported that the
current allocation, strategic allocation and actual performance of the
Pension Fund would be monitored to analyse the impact of asset
allocation decisions on the Pension Fund.

The Committee asked about emerging markets, in response to which
Hewitt reported that they would recommend mandates with the flexibility




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 18 JUNE 2009

to invest globally. Individual fund managers would need to reflect the
Pension Fund’s policy on ethical investments in their selection of global
stock.

On a motion by the Chair it was:
RESOLVED
i) That the Committee agree in principle to a movement in the
Pension Fund asset allocation of 2% from conventional gilts to

corporate bonds.

ii) That Hewitt be asked to look into options for investment in
currency and report back to the Pensions Committee.

iii) That implementation of the decision of the Committee be
delegated to the Chief Financial Officer.

PRPP95.| FUND PERFORMANCE UPDATE
The Chief Financial Officer presented the update on Fund Performance.
It was reported that overall performance for the quarter was above
benchmark by 0.09% but below target by 0.32%.
RESOLVED
i) That the Fund performance position as at end of March 2009
be noted.
ii) That responsible investments information provided be noted.
iii) That the budget management position to the end of April 2009
(period 1) be noted.
PRPP96.| ATTENDANCE BY FUND MANAGERS

The Committee received presentations from two Fund Managers as
follows:

FIDELITY

Fund performance for the equities mandate was 0.68% above the
benchmark and 1.02% below the target in annualised terms in the 24-
month period to the end of March 2009.

Fund performance for the bonds mandate was 1.10% below the
benchmark and 1.70% below the target in annualised terms in the 24-
month period to the end of March 2009.

Fidelity explained the reasons for current performance and answered




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 18 JUNE 2009

questions from Trustees. In response to a question from the Committee,
Fidelity reported that performance for the equities mandate for Quarter 1
to date was 10.4% in absolute terms, against the benchmark of 11.2%,
and performance for the bonds mandate was 2.1% in absolute terms,
against the benchmark of 0.7%.

CAPITAL

Fund performance for the equity mandate was 1.54% below the
benchmark and 3.54% below the target in annualised terms in the 24-
month period to the end of March 2009.

Fund performance for the fixed income mandate was 1.54% below the
benchmark and 2.54% below the target in annualised terms in the 24-
month period to the end of March 2009.

Capital explained the reasons for current performance and answered
questions from Trustees. In response to a question from the Committee,
Capital reported that performance for the equity mandate for Quarter 1 to
date was 7.9% against the benchmark of 8.4% and that performance for
the fixed income mandate for Quarter 1 to date was 1.09% against the
benchmark of 1.12%.

The Committee requested that Capital look into their composite
benchmark figure and report back, as it had been reported that the
Capital composite benchmark had underperformed the world benchmark
in 2008/09.

RESOLVED

That the presentations and answers to questions given by the Fund
Managers be noted.

PRPP97.

FUND ADMINISTRATION UPDATE

lan Benson, Pensions Manager, presented the Fund administration
update and advised the Committee of updates relating to monitoring ill-
health retirements, Equitable Life compensation payments, the South
Tyneside appeal case and pension surveys. The report also contained
information on ill-health retirement budget monitoring, the schedule of
agreed early retirements, the receipt of contributions from employing
bodies and schools, the results of the pensions survey and the
compliance statement.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the rise in early
retirement cases, Mr Benson reported that this related to instances of
redundancy where redeployment had not been possible. The Chief
Financial Officer confirmed that every effort was made to redeploy staff,
but that there were instances where this was not possible. The Chief
Financial Officer confirmed that in these cases contributions were paid to
the Pension Fund from the appropriate service budget. It was also
confirmed that the £9k cost of added years for early retirement under the




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 18 JUNE 2009

employing bodies was paid by the employing bodies so there was no
cost to the Pension Fund.

The Committee asked for an explanation of the variation between the
expected and actual numbers of ill-health retirements. Mr Benson
reported that procedures around the statutory requirements for ill-health
retirement were now more rigorous than they had been in the past, and
also that management of ill-health issues had improved.

RESOLVED

That the Administration Report update be noted.

PRPP98.

ADMISSION OF ONTIME PARKING SOLUTIONS LTD. TO THE
HARINGEY PENSION FUND

lan Benson, Pensions Manager, presented the report on the admission
of Ontime Parking Solutions Ltd as a transferee admitted body in the
Haringey Council Pension Fund from 1 June 2009, as the result of the
TUPE transfer of staff from the Abandoned Vehicles Team.

In response to a question from the Committee, Mr Benson reported that
Ontime Parking Solutions responsibilities would be moving abandoned
vehicles from the public highways. It was clarified that a separate
contractor was responsible for the same function on Homes for Haringey
property.

RESOLVED

i) That the admission of Ontime Parking Solutions Ltd be agreed
as a transferee admitted body to the Fund from 1% June 2009.

ii) That the agreement is a closed agreement such that no new
members can be admitted.

iii) That the contractor is required to provide a Bond valued by the
Fund actuary to cover potential pensions liabilities should the
contractor fail commercially.

iv) That final approval to the terms of this Admission Agreement
be delegated to the Chief Financial Officer.

PRPP99.

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

There were no new items of urgent business.

PRPP100

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 18 JUNE 2009

items.

PRPP101

EXEMPT MINUTES
RESOLVED

That the exempt minutes of the special meeting of the Pensions
Committee held on 30 April 2009 be approved and signed by the Chair.

PRPP102

REVIEWING THE POSITION OF A FUND MANAGER

The Committee considered the report to review the position of a Fund
Manager.

RESOLVED

That the recommendations of the report be agreed.

PRPP103

EXEMPT ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

There were no exempt items of urgent business.

COUNCILLOR CATHERINE HARRIS

Chair




N Page 9 Agenda Item 5
&2 GrantThornton

London Borough of Haringey Pension Fund ("The
Fund")

Audit of Financial Statements 2008/09
Report to those Charged with Governance 2008/09



Page 10

Auditor's Report to those Charged with Governance 2008/09

Contents Page
1  Executive Summary 2
2 Detailed findings 4
3 Audit adjustments 6
Appendices

A Reporting requirements of ISA 260

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



ISAUK 260 requires
communication of:

relationships that have a
bearing on the
independence of the audit
firm and the objectivity of
the engagement team
nature and scope of the

audit work
the form of reports
expected.

Page 11

Auditor's Report to those Charged with Governance 2008/09

1 Executive Summary

1.1 Purpose of report

The London Borough of Haringey (‘the Council’) is responsible for the preparation of
accounts which record its financial position as at 31 March 2009 and its income and
expenditure for the year then ended. We are responsible for undertaking an audit and
reporting whether, in our opinion, the Council’s accounts present fairly the financial
position of the Council. Those accounts are required to include, as a separate appendix, the
accounts of the Council's pension fund.

This report has been prepared for the benefit of discussion between

Grant Thornton UK LLP and the Pensions Committee of London Borough of Haringey
Pension Fund ('the Fund') to specifically consider the key issues affecting the Fund, and the
preparation of the Fund's accounts for the year ended 31 March 2009. We would point out
that the matters dealt with in this report came to our attention during the conduct of our
normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the accounts of the Council.

In consequence, our work did not encompass a detailed review of all aspects of the system
and controls and cannot be relied upon necessarily to disclose defalcations or other
irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more
extensive special examination might develop.

The document is also used to report to management to meet the mandatory requirements of
International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISAUK) 260, and to report audit
findings to "those charged with governance", designated as the Pensions Committee.

1.2 Status of audit

Our audit of the Fund is substantially complete. No matters remain unresolved which will
prevent the full accounts being recommended for approval at the General Purposes
Committee meeting on 24 September 2009.

1.3 Audit conclusions

Overall, our review of the Pension Fund concluded that the pensions department operates
with the level of efficiency we would expect for a fund of its size. The working papers
produced supporting the disclosures in the accounts were clear to understand. Documents
were suitably annotated, demonstrating those that had been subject to peer review, by
whom, and when the review had taken place.

There were no issues arising from our work this year. Paragraphs 2.3 to 2.5 therefore
consider how the points raised last year have been actioned this year.

In section 3, we have highlighted potential audit adjustments arising from our work.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 12

Auditor's Report to those Charged with Governance 2008/09

1.4 Acknowledgements

We would like to record our appreciation for the positive co-operation and assistance
provided to us by the finance department and other staff at the Council during the course of
our audit.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

September 2009

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 13

Auditor's Report to those Charged with Governance 2008/09

2 Detailed findings

2.1 Adoption of the revised SORP

The Fund accounts are required to adopt the revised Pension SORP (May 2007) for the first
time this year. The most significant change to the disclosure in the accounts compated to
previous years is that investments are required to be disclosed using fair values as follows:

e investments previously valued using mid-market prices are now required to use bid
prices

e investments in derivatives contracts to be accounted for using fair values (previously
such investments were accounted for using economic exposure).

The adoption of the revised SORP represents a change in accounting policy. Ordinarily this
would require prior year balances to be re-stated to reflect revised presentation. The SORP
however, recommends only amounts which would result in material differences to the
opening balances to be re-stated. It was concluded that the change in presentation did not
result in material differences to the opening balances, and thus no re-statement was
considered necessary.

2.2 Evaluation of key controls

We have undertaken sufficient work on key financial controls for the purpose of designing
our programme of work for the financial statements audit. Our evaluation of the Fund's key
financial control systems did not identify any control issues that present a material risk to
the accuracy of the financial statements.

We performed a high level review of the general IT control environments as part of the
overall review of the internal control system and concluded that there were no material
weaknesses within the I'T arrangements that could adversely impact our audit of the
accounts.

2.3 Use of shared bank accounts

As highlighted in our report last year, cash balances are held in shared bank accounts with
Council main funds, and concerns were raised over the suitability of this practice in the
longer term. Our review this year, as with last year, concluded that good controls are in
place to ensure funds relating to the fund are easily identifiable.

[wording to mirror that of the overall audit. At time of issuing draft, still to be finalised]

Our recommendation remains that consideration is given to the Fund having its own bank
accounts separate from those of the Council.

2.4 Timeliness of contributions receipts

Regulations require that contributions deducted from members' salaries are paid over to the
fund by no later than the nineteenth day following the calendar month from which the
contributions have been deducted.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 14

Auditor's Report to those Charged with Governance 2008/09

During our review of contributions, it was noted for two of the scheduled and admitted
bodies, contributions were late for between one and two months up to a maximum of five
occasions each. This represents a significant improvement on our review last year where late
contributions were experienced for ten of the scheduled and admitted bodies, where in
some cases, contributions were late every single month.

2.5 Timeliness of settling benefit cases

During our review of benefits paid during the year ended 31 March 2008, it was noted that
in some cases, lump sum benefit payments were not being settled in a timely manner. This
was due to the timing of the BACS run where some benefits had been approved for
payment part way through the month, but were not paid until the month end BACS run.

No significant issues were noted from our testing this year.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 15

Auditor's Report to those Charged with Governance 2008/09

3 Audit adjustments

During the course of our work, certain potential adjustments were identified, and have been
actioned as detailed in the following paragraphs. All related to re-classification anomalies,
thus having no impact on the net assets of the Fund.

3.1 Adjusted changes

The following item has been processed by management:

e A review of benefit payments showed that an amount totalling £422,305 relating to tax
free cash sums had been included in pensions cost. The adjustment has no effect on the
fund account, but facilitates comparison with prior year figures.

3.2 Unadjusted changes

A refund of overpaid added years contributions totalling £7,129 had been allocated to
"Contribution refunds" as opposed to reducing the employee contributions disclosure.
There is no impact on the net assets of the fund, and it is not considered significant to have
an adverse impact on the presentation in the fund account.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 16

‘sasodind

JIpNE SIUNODE [eulj 0] pun,J ot 1¢ Sunerodo swolsAs Fununodde Loy o vo souerax serrdordde aoe[d 01 o[qe Uoaq aarY o4\ °
*$30339 Aue

30 10eduwr oy Sururwzalop ur pue yoreordde ipne oy SUTUIUIAISP UT SIUSWIEIS [IDUEUN 94 UT SWaT JO AI[ErFolewu o) JOPISUOD 94\ ° yoeoxddy npny

:opnUT IYSYSIY 03 $70108J £33 1Y) "IN IPNY JO 9PO7) S, VOTSSIUIIO)) IPNY 9

pUE SpIepuEls SunIpne I 20UEPI0dIE Ul Jpne 1o pauued 2ary 9\ ‘ue[d IIpne ¢()/800g FNO UT INO 19s sea pne ay1 01 yaeordde mo
‘SpIepuElg [EdIPH S, PFeOy $9ondei ] sunipny o) P A[dwod o) e

s1eah G £39A9 UONEIOI 01 309[qns 23 FOFeULW 201AFIS UL pue Joipne parurodde oy T, .

‘sprepuels Qrenb pormboz sir yim Surd[dwod se vorssrwon) 1pny oyl Aq PIssIsSe U29q Sey Wi YT, .

‘gorssTwwo)) pny oy £q pajurodde Apuopuadopurare o)y e

souapuadopuy

:sjutod SUIMO[0F 9} 01 TONUINE AEIP PUE STONPNE St L11A1R9(q0 put 20uspuadopul INO WIFUOD O I[QE T A\
S93esSaN] A9y[

092 VS| 19pun pajioday siajzen
*$$9203d J1pnE oY) WOIJ SUISIIE SUONEAIISCO JANINIISUOD DULUFIA0S (M Padrerd asoyy 01 opraoid o, e
“sonIIqrsuodsar 0ANoodsox JOY) [N 90UBUISA0S I PaSIBYD 9SOU) PUE JOIPNE J1) YIOq IS[SSE 03 UONBUWIOJUT 9F8YS O], o

"9dURUFIAOS M PISTEYD 9SOY) PUE JOPNE o) JO saNIIqIsuodsar 9anadsas o) pue 1pne o) Jo 29dods o) JO SUIPULISIOPUN [eMINW € YOBII O], e

:s1330d03 ()97 VST 2y Jo 9sodind edourrd oy,

09Z VST Jo syuowaimbox Sunsodoy v



Page 17

Ipne Ino wsﬁw_@ P213RUOPT 9J9M JOIITOD [BUIIIUT UT SISSIUN LM [eLIIet ON]

SIONEN YO

“z'¢ ydeagered ur paso[asIp ua9q sy SIY[, *SIUNODIE
pung vorsuad o 03 [EIFAILW 10U SEA YDA JOTID PAISn(peun oUO PaynUIPI 9ALY IM A[snoradrd pauonuaw sinsas JIpNe Y3 Woi,|

s10339 paisnfpeun

‘1°¢ ydessered ur pasmewwuns o3¢ syusunsnipe 28y,

sygounsnf] n
*$910U 2INSO[ISIP JO TONLIUasard pue ATE[ I SE [[M SE SIUIWAILIS HISUASIPY UPIV
[erUrUY 9 JO uoneIuasaid Jreg ot oaoxdwr 01 A[rewrd $IUNOJOE JU) 01 SIVIUNSNIPE JO IOUWINU € JUIWITLULW IIA PISSNISIP ALY I\
81 S¥d
£q parmbos se ‘arerrdordde 3sowr oy axe pardope sardrjod SununoddE 9Y1 1EYL PIFSHES ST IT JBY) WIFUOD P[NOYS I9)ITWWOT) SUOISUIJ YT,
"SAWIYDG sapr0g
UOTSUD J TUIWUIIA0L) [8207T 01 9[qear[dde se (1)) KLy PasTady]) SOWYIG UOISUIJ JO Sunsodoy [EDUEUL] DNIEI ] PIPUIWWOIY Sununoosoy

Jo 1wdwwIg M A[dwod os[e sIudWILIS [BDULUT YT, ‘g7 WOPSUTS] PaiIu() oU3 Ul SURUN0IDY ALIOYINY [0 JO 9O0LI]
JO 9pO7) I U INO 138 SIUIPPIMS PIM pue (PIPUdWY SY) /(g WORENTIY SWIYDS VOTSUIJ JUSWUIIAOL) [ED0 Y2 A I0ULPIOIIT
ur 95oM saprjod Sununoddy “Supsal o £q paroaod seare 9y ur saprod Sununodde gerdordde pardope sey pun,] 93 1Y) JOPISTOD )\

S93esSIN] A9y[




Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19 Agenda Item 6

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Pensions Committee 17 September 2009

Report Title. Quarterly Asset Allocation review

Report of The Chief Financial Officer

r
Signed : U\ A

Contact Officer : Colin Duck — Corporate Finance
Telephone 020 8489 3731

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non key decision

1. Purpose of the report
1.1.To review the Fund’s asset allocation position.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member

2.1 Not applicable.

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1. This report links in with the need to regularly monitor the performance of the
Pension Fund.




Page 20

Recommendation
4.1 Thatthe Fund’s Asset Allocation position be noted.

Reason for recommendation
5.1. Our external investment advisors, Hewitt, advise no further changes be made to
current asset allocation at this stage.

Other options considered
6.1. None.

Summary

7.1. This report considers the latest Asset Allocation advice received from the Fund’s
external investment advisors. This will be updated further at the meeting taking
account of up to date market data and views.

Head of Legal Services Comments

8.1. The Head of Legal Service has been consulted on the content of this report and
comments that the Committee should give full consideration to the financial advice
received concerning the recommendation on current asset allocation. Members are
reminded of the duty on an administering authority to conduct a coherent overview of
investment activity and performance of the Pension Fund in order to ensure the
suitability of investments and types of investments.

Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments
9.1. There are no equalities issues arising from this report.

10.

Consultation
10.1. Not applicable.

1.

Service Financial Comments

11.1. The Pension Fund receive Hewitt's quarterly active asset re-balancing
proposals as produced by their Asset Allocation team at a cost of £30k per
annum. This cost includes presenting these proposals at meetings of Pensions
Committee.

11.2. The cost of the quarterly investment outlook updates should be more than

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 21

offset by additional performance returns made by the Fund by following an active
asset re-balancing strategy.

12. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
12.1. Appendix 1 - report by Hewitt.

13.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

13.1 Update on Asset Allocation issues report and presentation by Hewitt to Pensions
Committee on 29 January 2009.

Background

14.1 Pensions Committee on 30 April 2009 considered a report on Asset Allocation and
agreed that:

e an active asset allocation rebalancing strategy be introduced on a quarterly basis;

o that the asset allocation review service be provided by Hewitt and that the budget
be amended to reflect this; ,

o that decisions be delegated to the Chief Financial officer in consultation with the
Chair of Pensions Committee, if any asset allocation changes need revising
urgently in between quarterly meetings of Pensions Committee.

14.2 At the 18 June meeting of Pensions Committee, following consideration of Hewitts first
quarterly Asset Allocation report it was agreed that a 2% switch be made from
conventional gilts to corporate bonds. That switch (equivalent to £9.95m) was made
on 6 August 2009 within Fidelity's fixed income portfolio.

14.3 The second Quarterly Asset Allocation report is appended from the Pension Fund's

external investment advisors. This report gives an executive summary, quarterly
investment outlook and a market update.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 3



Page 22

Quarterly Asset Allocation review

14.4 Hewitt's report shows the Fund’s asset allocation and benchmark weightings as at 30

14.5

14.6

14.7

June 2009 as provided by the Custodian, Northern Trust. Summary numbers are as
follows. The last column shows Hewitt's suggested range.

Actual Benchmark | Suggested
allocation as at range
30/06/09
% % %
UK equities 27 1 30.5 25-30
Overseas equities 36.3 34.5 30 — 40
UK gilts 7.9 7.0 0-10
Index linked gilts 7.5 6.0 0-20
Corporate bonds 11.9 7.0 0-15
Private equity 1.9 5.0 2-5
Property 6.4 10.0 5-15
Cash 1.1 0
Totals 100 100.0

Hewitt assume that inflation will be lower for the next few years but in the longer term
there is a risk of higher inflation scenarios due to the central banks maintenance of
utra — easy monetary stances. Inflation risks and large gilt issuance make current
yields unattractive. By comparison, although corporate bond spreads over gilts have
declined, Hewitts' are of the view they still represent a more attractive investment
compared to gilts. However, no further switches from gilts to corporate bonds are
recommended at present. Opportunities to purchase property are anticipated for later
this year.

The June market update shows that equity markets continued to rally across the world
although investors have looked for the ‘green shoots’ of economic recovery since
March. Hewitt's view is that a durable economic recovery based on growing
household spending, and business investment is unlikely before next year.

Hewitt advise that:

e no changes be made in equities weightings until realistic profit margins are fully
reflected in valuations;

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



Page 23

e Corporate bonds are preferred to gilts but no further adjustments are
recommended at this time;

e no changes are recommended for property at present although Hewitts’ remain
convinced that opportunities will come later in the year for ING to make active
purchases. They will advise on opportunities at the appropriate time.

o the Fund’s Private equity allocation should not be changed.

Conclusions

14.8 Hewitt have provided their latest Quarterly Asset Allocation review report as
appended. The report makes recommendations to maintain the existing asset
allocation at present.

14.9 Hewitt will attend Pensions Committee and give specific recommendations, if
necessary after taking account of up to date market data.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 5



Page24 ANV OIX

' ¥ 4

%
«%

=

g"“%

«m««%
e
s
o

Hewilt

20 August 2009

Prepared for
Pensions Committee

Prepared by
Hewitt Associates Limited

Hewitt Associates Limited
Registered in England No. 4396810
Registered office: 6 More London Place London SE1 2DA

This report and any enclosures or attachments are prepared on the understanding that it is solely for the benefit of the
addressee(s). Unless we provide express prior written consent no part of this report should be reproduced, distributed or
communicated to anyone else and, in providing this report, we do not accept or assume any responsibility for any other purpose or
to anyone other than the addressee(s) of this report.

Copyright © 2009 Hewitt Associates Limited. All rights reserved.



Page 25

Contents

Executive Summary
Quarterly Investment Outlook
July Market Update

Hewitt Associates Limited



Page 26

Executive Summary

investment Outlook We expect an inventory rebound to encourage investors looking for green
shoots, but a genuine economic recovery is not yet in the offing.

It is too soon to become enthusiastic over equity market prospects and we are
not adding to equity weightings at this time. Emerging market and small cap
equity outperformance is not justified.

Inflation should head lower for the next few years, reflecting abundant spare
capacity. Further out, risks shift towards higher inflation.

Corporate bonds remain more attractive than gilts, even as spreads continue to
tighten. Inflation and issuance concerns suggest a need for continued caution
on fixed interest gilts.

Within alternatives, we continue to like hedge funds and also believe that
transactions prices in property are now nearing their floor.

Asset Allocation and The Fund’s actual asset allocation and benchmark weightings as at 30 June

Fund Benchmark 2009 (using information provided by Northern Trust) are shown in the table
below:
e ota H gagested
UK Equities 131.7 ‘27.1 30.5 25.— ;5’-5
Overseas Equities 176.5 36.3 34.5 30-40
UK Gilts 38.6 7.9 7.0 0-10
Index Linked Gilts 36.6 7.5 6.0 0-20
Corporate Bonds 57.7 11.9 7.0 0-15
Private Equity 9.1 1.9 5.0 2-5
Property 30.9 6.4 10.0 5-15
Cash 5.3 1.1
Total 486.4 100.0 100.0 -
What this means for Equities — we are still of the view that realistic profit margins are not being
the Fund fully reflected in equity valuations, and so we continue to recommend that no

change is made to the equity weighting at this time.

Bonds — the Fund has recently implemented a 2% move from Gilts to
Corporate Bonds. We see no need for any further adjustment at this time.

Property — we remain convinced that opportunities will come later in the year,
at which time we would look for the underweight position in property to be
closed through active purchases by ING. We will advise on the source of
funds at the appropriate time.

Private Equity — we do not believe that the Fund's private equity allocation
should be increased at this time.

Hewitt Associates Limited 1



Page 27

Quarterly Investment Outlook

Summary

3 months to 30 June
2009

investors become
much less risk averse

inventory green shoots

m We expect an inventory rebound to encourage investors looking for
green shoots, but a genuine economic recovery is not yet in the offing.

® It is too soon to become enthusiastic over equity market prospects and
we are not adding to equity weightings at this time. Emerging market
and small cap equity outperformance is not justified.

m Inflation should head lower for the next few years, reflecting abundant
spare capacity. Further out, risks shift towards higher inflation.

m Corporate bonds remain more attractive than gilts, even as spreads
continue to tighten. Inflation and issuance concerns suggest a need for
continued caution on fixed interest gilts.

m Within alternatives, we continue to like hedge funds and also believe
that transactions prices in property are now nearing their floor.

Index Returns from 31/3/2009 to 30/6/2009
30% -
25% -
20% -

15% | N B

10% : 2 |

5% ) I l
0% R ol 3 L __— - A - .

5% -

@ Sterling terms
< Local currency terms

g

UK Equities  US Equities Europe ExUK  Japanese Pacific Ex  Emerging UK Fixed UKindex UK Corporate UK property”
Equiies Equities Japan Market Interest Glits  Linked Gilts Bonds
Equities Equifies

Source: DatastreanvIiPD *Property return is 3 months to the end of May

-10% -

The strength in equity markets in March continued throughout April and
May as encouraging economic indicators were released and as
policymakers continued to be proactive in promoting growth. While there
has subsequently been a small correction in equity markets, this has
come later and from a higher level than we anticipated.

Other asset classes performed consistently with this less risk-averse
attitude of investors: fixed interest gilts lost investors money, the safe
haven Yen weakened and commaodity prices rose sharply. The only
exception was property, where illiquidity meant a lagging performance.

Investors have been on the lookout for 'green shoots' of economic
recovery since March, when Ben Bernanke, the chairman of the US
Federal Reserve, used the term to describe gradual improvement in US
data.

Since then, a fair number of green shoots have been spotted in the US
and elsewhere. However, this good news has been of the 'less negative’
type, rather than positive signs of economic revival. More visible green
shoots could soon be on the way. Fearing a collapse in demand, UK
companies had slashed inventory around the turn of the year.

This resuited in a big hit to GDP growth, worse than that seen in the last
recession of the early 1990s (see chart).

Hewitt Associates Limited



Equities constrained
by increased supply

Emerging markets and
small cap have run too
hard

Page 28

Now, as sales declines level out, inventories could be rebuilt. The magic
of accounting for inventories, however, is that inventories could continue
to be cut and economic growth would still be boosted, provided
companies reduced them at a slower rate than before.

This boost to economic growth might reassure investors anxious for
evidence of an economic rebound. The catch is that such restocking tends
to only give a short-term boost to the economy before fading. Our view is
that a durable economic recovery based on growing household spending
and business investment is unlikely before next year.

UK - Contribution of Change in inventories to Change in

- GDP (Annualised)

6% -
4%

—gzﬁ: l Ii A‘“l ""“V’ﬂ J‘]'“‘t l]" , . Li' ‘”"“, pit r“"”ili! “{'

-4%

-6% - Source: Office for National Statistics
_8% =t e

Jun-55
Jun-59
Jun-63
Jun-67
Jun-71
Jun-75
Jun-79
Jun-83
Jun-87
Jun-91
Jun-95
Jun-99
Jun-03 !
Jun-07

Though the market rebound went over and beyond what we would have
expected from a normal bear market rally, our view remains that we have
not entered a new bull market.

HET SHARE ISBUANCE UK ENTITIES (£m, Bank of Enuland é%‘i%}
2065 20086 2007 2008 2009 1o May
7.224 < BA77 | - 14384 23,876 44,724

One factor which we believe will hold the market back is the supply of
equity that is coming to the market. Banks have had to raise equity this

year to boost regulatory capital ratios, but the increase in share issues is a
broader trend.

UK equity market data shows that net equity issuance has turned sharply
positive as companies are raising substantial new capital. This follows a
period when the private equity boom and share buybacks had shrunk the
amount of shares in issue (negative numbers for 2005-7 in table).

This increased supply of equity is likely to be a constraining factor on the
market making further gains as it is not evident that demand for equities
will rise in step with supply at higher market levels.

Economically sensitive emerging market and small cap equities have
performed strongly in the equity market rebound. Emerging markets have
recovered much of the ground lost in late 2008 supported by rising
commodity prices and stronger economic data in China.

Our analysis, however, favours developed markets for the medium-term,
based on the view that emerging market valuations suggest excessive
optimism on how emerging economies and their companies will perform.

We also favour large capitalisation stocks over small.

Coming out of recession, small cap stocks have usually outperformed, but
their relatively good performance throughout the recession now means
that their valuation support is poor.

Hewitt Associates Limited



Not adding to equities

inflation outlook -
particularly important

Longer-term risk of
higher inflation

Corporate bonds
preferred over gilts

Page 29

We remain on the sidelines in equities. The lack of strong valuation
support in our models, our view that the compression of profit margins is
incomplete and structural factors such as increased supply are behind our
lack of enthusiasm.

We are alert to changes in market conditions that would move us towards
taking a more positive 'buying' stance on equities, but at present, we are
holding back from adding to equities. We anticipate opportunities to take a
more positive view will arise in due course, at levels which should still be
above the March market lows.

Inflation uncertainty has increased and is now having an important impact
on all asset classes. Our research on the inflation outlook highlights
strong pulls away from the moderate inflation path we have hitherto
assumed.

Over the next two to three years, the extent of spare capacity opened up
by the severity of the economic contraction suggests lower inflation.
Output gaps, the difference between potential and actual output, are
large, keeping inflation at bay (see chart). Underlying inflation could move
towards zero in major economies.

UK: Large Output Gap Keeps Inflation Low
(Projected Output Gap in shaded area)

135
130 - En GDP (consensus forecasts 2009 onw ards) 3 Output Gap
125
8
) 120 4 Source: Datastream, Consensus Economics,IMF
% 115 i%
é 110 7% .
105 6%
100 4 :
95 i A e e g am—
2006 Q3 2007 Q2 2008 Q1 2008 Q4 2011 2014 2017

Beyond the next few years, however, a pull towards the other extreme of
significantly higher inflation is more likely. As economic recovery comes
through, the large amounts of money that central banks have created will
tend to feed through into the economy and push up inflation.

The inability or reluctance of central banks to exit their ultra-easy
monetary stance in a timely way, at a time when politicians are more
involved in economic policy, is the key risk to our long-term assumption of
moderate inflation.

Our view that risks are tilted towards higher inflation beyond the next few
years suggests that investors in fixed interest gilts should demand a
higher premium for bearing this additional risk. The climb in conventional
gilt yields, despite large purchases by the Bank of England suggests that
investors have indeed become more cautious.

Inflation risks and large gilt issuance underpin our view that yields remain
below our buying levels. Corporate bond spreads over gilts have declined
sharply, but still leave corporate bonds looking attractive relative to gilts
on our valuation approach.

However, the absolute attraction of corporate bonds is less attractive
because the underlying gilt yields are not particularly appealing.

Hewitt Associates Limited



Sterling surges

...and has gone far
enough

A mixed outlook in the
"alternative
investments” arena

Page 30

Sterling rose sharply during the quarter, rising 15% against the dollar, but
this must be seen in the context of the much sharper fall over the second

half of 2008. Sterling's fall was driven by the loss of its traditional interest

rate support, by a large external deficit and relatively high exposure to the
weakening financial sector.

However, as we pointed out in December, by then the drags were either
about to lessen or were priced in. Sterling surged once investors became
less risk averse.

Sterling Exchange Rates (% Change)

5%
0% i
-5% A
-10% -
-15%
-20% -
-25%
-30(%) B
-35% -
_400/0 | |
-45% 4 . UK£vs US $ UK £ vs BURO e UK £ vs YEN
-50%
Jun 08 Aug 08 Oct 08 Dec 08 Feb 09 Apr 09 Jun 09

Source: Datastream

Sterling is now close to the OECD's estimate of its long term purchasing
power and with investors in our view somewhat ahead of themselves, we
think a neutral stance on sterling is in order.

Turning to the so-called "alternative investments” arena:

Commodities performed very well, oil and copper prices rising 40% and
28%, respectively. However futures prices were well above spot prices,
leading to a negative "roll return” (the return that results from rolling the
current futures contract into the next one) and a smaller rise of 19% in the
GSCI commodity total return index over this period. With this negative roll
return still in place and the short term demand for commodities rather
guestionable, we believe it is premature to commit to this asset class.

Now that the massive redemption requests that hit hedge funds have
largely been satisfied, we can expect a more normal steady sequence of
returns. We remain positive on hedge funds.

Property was the worst performing asset class. Its illiquidity and the
valuation lag mean that true market prices are rarely reflected in indices.
In our view, actual transaction prices should bottom later this year and we
are suggesting to clients to get mandates lined up now to ensure timely
investment. The Fund already has ING in place as property manager, and
so the areas that need to be addressed are the timing and source of
increasing funds for the manager, which we can advise on in due course.

Hewitt Associates Limited



Page 31

July Market Update

Index Returns from 30/6/2009 to 31/7/2009

12% -
m Sterling terms
+ Local currency terms

10% -

8% ‘

6% - ]

4% - ‘

2% A ‘ . I

0 B T"l

-2%

T

UK Equities US Equittes Europe ExUK  Japanese Pacific Ex  Emerging UK Fixed UKindex UKCarporate UK property’
Equities Equities Japan Market Interest Gilts  Linked Gilts Bonds
Equities Equities

Source: DatastreanyIPD

Property relates to end of May 2009 to end of June 2009

= Equity markets across the world posted strong gains through the
month. The best performance was in Emerging Markets, Japan
lagged.

= Risky assets in general have performed well over the month on the
back of a good start to earnings season and renewed economic
optimism.

®*  Monetary policy continues to remain stimulatory but questions are
beginning to surface over central banks exit strategies.

Index Returns from 30/6/2009 to 31/7/2009
2% ~

1% -

0% - . . ( , , . ._
-10/0‘ I I

-2% -

Cash Gilts - Short  Gilts - Medium Gilts - Long  LG- Short  ILG- Medium LG~ Long

Source: Datastream

*  Medium to long dated fixed interest gilt yields increased over the
month, probably caused by investors returning to risky assets. Short
dated conventional and index-linked gilts outperformed longer
maturities.

= Property prices fell again in June (-0.2%), but the rate of decline in
commercial property prices does appear to be slowing.

®  Corporate Bonds returned 3% over the month as spreads continued
to narrow. The spread on the Merrill Lynch Sterling Non-Gilt index
decreased 60bps to 2.59% at the end of July.

Hewitt Associates Limited




Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



FYIee Agenda ltem 7

Haringey Courncil

Agenda item:

Pensions Committee On 17/09/09

Report Title. Fund Performance update

Report of The Chief Financial Officer

Signed :

Contact Officer : Colin Duck — Corporate Finance
Telephone 020 8489 3726

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Noting

1. Purpose of the report

1.1.To consider the latest investment performance data for the Pensions Fund and for
each of the Fund’s investment managers.

1.2. To compare responsible investments information provided by our Fund Managers
with that supplied by LAPFF.

1.3. To report 2009/10 budget monitoring to the end of July 2009.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member

2.1 Not applicable.

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:
3.1. Not applicable.




Page 34

. Recommendations

4.1 That the Fund performance position as at end of June 2009 be noted.
4.2 That responsible investments information provided be noted.

4.3 That the budget management position to the end of July 2009 (period 4) be noted.

. Reason for recommendations
5.1.This report is for noting.

. Other options considered
6.1. Not applicable.

. Summary

7.1The annualised performance of the combined Haringey fund has declined in
absolute terms by 9.96% per cent up to 30 June 2009, underperformed the gross
benchmark by 2.43% and also underperformed the gross target by 4.07%.

7.2 Overall performance this quarter is below both benchmark and target.

7.3There has been a measure of volatility in the market over the past period but
overall, markets have risen. '

7.4 In overall terms the budget is on target.

. Head of Legal Services Comments

8.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report. The
consideration of this report falls within the duties on the Committee, acting for the
Administering Authority, in reviewing investment performance generally and the
performance of specific investment fund managers. Such a review must always
take into account the interests of stakeholders and beneficiaries.

. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments
9.1. There are no equalities issues arising from this report.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 2




Page 35

10. Consultation
10.1. Not applicable.

11. Service Financial Comments

11.1 Performance of our Fund Managers continues to be carefully monitored in the
current market conditions. Capital continue to under perform both the benchmark
and the target.

11.2 In overall terms the budget is on target. The current surplus is being monitored
carefully so that any net gain is invested at the appropriate time in line with the
agreed investment strategy. The majority of the current years in-house surpluses
are earmarked to fund private equity investments.

12. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
12.1. Appendix 1 Top ten shares held and fund holdings.
12.2. Appendix 2 Fund performance to 30 June 2009.
12.3. Appendix 3 Responsible Investments (Top ten holdings).
12.4 Appendix 4 Responsible Investments (Other holdings).

12.5 Appendix 5 Budget management to end of July 2009.

13 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Northern Trust performance monitoring reports.

Fund performance update report to Pensions Committee on 18 June 2009.

14 Investment performance reported at the March meeting of Pensions Committee

14.1 The investment performance of the Pensions fund was last reported to Pensions
Committee in June 2009. That report covered the period up to 31 March 2009, at
which time the following points were noted:

e  Since monitoring against the new benchmark commenced on 1 April 2007, the
combined Haringey fund has declined in absolute terms by 13.60% per cent up
to 31 March 2009, underperformed the gross benchmark by 2.27% and also
underperformed the gross target by 3.91%.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 3




Page 36

e  There has been continuous uncertainty in the market over the past period due to
a number of issues. These principally concerning the timings and pace of
economic recovery. These have impacted upon the performance of our portfolio
and are still ongoing. Up to the end of March 2009 performance by our Fund
Managers was as follows:

Bernstein’s Global Equity and UK Equity mandates have underperformed
the gross targets by 12.56% and 9.35% respectively.

Fidelity’s Bond mandate under performed the gross target by 1.70% and the
Equity mandate under performed the gross target by 1.02% but achieved
the benchmark.

Capital’s Equity and Bond mandates are below target by 3.54% and 2.54%

ING are below target by 0.91%.

15. Investment performance for the combined Fund updated for this quarter

15.1 The last performance update to Pensions Committee on 18 June 2009 reminded
trustees that our new investment structure was largely implemented on 16 March

2007.

Therefore, this report shows performance monitoring against the new

benchmarks from 1 April 2007.

152 Performance of the combined Haringey fund compared to benchmark and target
for the three months and annualised 27 months periods to end of June 2009 are
shown below. The target is shown gross of Fund Managers fees and assumes
that returns above benchmark are achieved evenly throughout the year.

3 months to | 27 months to

end of June end of June

2009 2009

(annualised)
% %

Overall fund performance 5.80 (9.96)
Benchmark 6.65 (7.53)
Performance versus benchmark (0.85) (2.43)
Overall fund performance (5.80) (9.96)
Target (7.06) (5.89)
Performance versus target (1.26) (4.07)

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



156.3

15.4

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

Report Template: Formal Bodies

Page 37

This shows that in the 27 months period to June 2009:

) The annualised performance of the combined Haringey fund has decreased
in absolute terms by 9.96%, the fund under performed the new benchmark by
2.43% and under performed the target by 4.07%;

. The annualised position has marginally deteriorated since that report to the
last meeting with the under performance versus target increasing from (3.91)
to (4.07).

Appendix 1 shows the following for the combined fund as at end of June 2009 and

2008 for comparative purposes: (1) top ten shares held and (2) fund holdings.

Fund Manager Performance

Appendix 2 shows for each Fund Manager investment performance to end of June
2009, compared to benchmarks and targets as supplied by our custodian, Northern
Trust. This is the ninth quarter since the new benchmarks were introduced,
consequently, we have limited historic data.

The performance targets for each Fund Manager's mandates are shown below.
They denote the percentage annualised return above benchmark over a rolling 3
year period. The table also includes Investec and Record for completeness. The
contract with Alliance Bernstein was terminated on 16 June 2009 and the resulting
assets transferred to Legal and General and invested in tracker funds as
previously agreed. Consequently, detailed performance data in respect of these
two companies is not included in the information below.

We have had 21 calls on the Pantheon Asia and USA funds totalling £9.8 million to
date and although performance numbers are included there are not considered
meaningful as a significant proportion of the portfolio is yet to be invested.



Page 38

16.4 Targets are set out in the table below and are gross of fees.

% Target % actual annualised % actual annualised
above performance performance
benchmark above/(below) above/(below) target in
benchmark in the 27 the 27 months to June
months to June 2009 2009
Capital - equities 2.0 (1.66) (3.66)
Capital - bonds 1.0 (1.35) (2.35)
Fidelity - equities 1.7 0.67 (1.03)
Fidelity - bonds 0.6 0.1 (0.49)
ING 1.0 (0.72) (1.72)
Pantheon — private equity 0.75 N/A N/A
Investec — active currency 2 N/A N/A
Record — active currency 2 N/A N/A

16.5 The latest quarterly meetings took place on 29 July 2009 between each Fund
Manager (excluding Pantheon — where meetings are held half yearly) and the
Head of Finance — Budgeting, Projects & Treasury. A summary of the key issues
discussed at those meetings is set out below.

16.5.1 Legal and General
e Performance to date.
o Future outlook for markets.
¢ Review of our Responsible Investment policy.

16.5.2 Capital International
e Performance to date.
e Future outlook for markets.
¢ Review of our Responsible Investment policy.

16.5.3 Fidelity
¢ Performance to date.
e Future outlook for markets.
e Responsible Investments.

16.5.4 ING
e Performance to date.
e Volatility in the property market and future estimated returns.

e Investment opportunities to become fully invested to increased property
benchmark.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 6




16.5.5

17.

171

17.2

17.3

18.

18.1

18.2

Page 39

Up to the end of June 2009 performance by our Fund Managers in annualised
terms was as follows:

e Capital’s Equity and Bond mandates are below target by 3.66% and
2.35%.

e Fidelity’'s Equity and Bond mandates under performed the gross targets by
1.03% and 0.49% respectively, although both mandates have marginally
exceeded their benchmarks.

e ING are below target by 1.72%.
Conclusions

Since monitoring against the new benchmark commenced on 1 April 2007, the
annualised performance of the combined Haringey fund has declined in absolute
terms by 9.96% per cent up to 30 June 2009, under performed the gross
benchmark by 2.43% and also under performed the gross target by 4.07%.

Regarding our Fund Managers, Capital are under performing the most.

Although equity and bond returns have been positive in the last quarter there are
a number of ongoing issues which are likely to impact on future performance,
and we are monitoring the position carefully. These include:

The paying down of household, corporate and sovereign debt;
The price of oil and commodities

The trends of inflation/deflation

Interest rates; and,

Property prices and rental values.

Responsible Investments

At Pensions Committee on 23 June 2008 a review of the Fund's Responsible
Investment Policy was considered and agreed by Trustees. One of the
recommendations was that officer's monitor the Fund Managers approach to the
revised Responsible Investment Policy.

Appendix 3 and 4 compares responsible investments information provided by the
Council’s two core Fund Managers for the quarter ending 30 June 2009 with the
information supplied by LAPFF over the same time period for the Fund'’s top ten
holdings of shares (Appendix 3) and engagement with other companies (Appendix
4) Where LAPFF have raised issues in companies where Haringey do not own
shares, then this information has been excluded. This comparison will be made
each quarter going forward as part of this report.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 7



Page 40

19. Budget Management

19.1 The budget monitoring analysis to period 4 (end of July 2009) is attached in
Appendix 5.

19.2  Significant variances to date are:

19.3 In

transfer values paid £316k and received (£1.705m) where the volume will vary
by year and timing within the year ;

the amount of lump sums (£387k) paid vary by year and timing within the year;

investment income £3.087m is dependent upon companies invested in by our
Fund Managers;

employer contributions £187k are dependent on the number and grades of
staff transferring into and out of the scheme;

investment management expenses (£488k) are influenced by the timing of
receipt of invoices from Fund Managers and market values.

overall terms the budget is on target. The current surplus is being monitored

carefully so that any net gain is invested at the appropriate time in line with the
agreed investment strategy. The majority of current year's in-house surpluses are
earmarked to fund private equity investments.

20.

20.1

20.2

Invested cash

Following the strategic review of the Fund in March 2007 trustees approved an
increase in property holdings from 6%-10%. An amount of cash equivalent to
that increased holding of £18m was invested in the money market pending the
identification of suitable investment opportunities by the property manager ING.
To date, £8.65m has been drawn down by ING to fund investments in both UK
and European property funds. The balance of £9.35m remains invested in fixed
term deposits of up to one year pending further cash calls from ING.

The downturn in the property market has impacted on the timing of future cash
calls such that the mandate is unlikely to be fully funded until 2010.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 8



Page 41

20.3 The strategic review of March 2007 also recommended that cash generated
annually from surplus contributions, equivalent to £10m p.a be earmarked to
fund a new private equity mandate managed by Pantheon. In the year to March
2009 £6.35m was transferred directly to Pantheon to fund cash calls on the
mandate. The uncalled balance of £3.35 was added to the brought forward
cash surplus that was set aside in 2007 to fund the mandate. As at 30 June
2009 £13.15m is invested by the Council on the Fund’s behalf in fixed term
deposits pending cash calls by Pantheon.

20.4 The Council’s standard risk protocols are applied to all investments made on
behalf of the pension fund.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 9



APPENDIX 1

TOP TEN SHARES HELD

Page 42

As at 30 June 2009 l}.s at 30 June 2008
5ercentage of Percentage of
Shares Rank Equities Market Value Rank Equities Market Value
% £'000 % £'000
Shell 'B' Ord 1 0.70 2,157 1 3.68 13,920
Roche 2 0.69 2,137
HSBC 3 0.67 2,083 6 1.24 4,689
BP 4 0.65 2,019 2 2.91 11,023
Vodafone 5 0.61 1,909 3 2.15 8,149
SMC 6 0.42 1,314
NTT Docomo 7 0.42 1,297
Astra Zeneca 8 0.38 1,188 9 0.94 3,560
Aviva 9 0.36 1,110 7 1.00 3,810
Shell 'A’ 10 0.35 1,085
Glaxosmithkline 4 1.88 7,132
Royal Bank Scotland 5 1.74 6,591
BAE Systems 8 0.97 3,682
Barclays 10 0.92 3,476
FUND HOLDINGS
As at 30 June 2009 As at 30 June 2008
Percentage of Percentage of
Fund Holdings Fund Market Value Fund Market Value
% £'000 % £'000
UK equities 5.1 26,194 204 117,900
Overseas equities 12.9 65,840 22.0 126,846
Pooled investment vehicles 63.8 324,534 404 233,494
Index-linked securities 3.2 16,156 1.2 6,826
[Fixed interest securities 3.5 17,608 34 19,786
Cash 55 27,819 46 26,466
Property 6.1 30,870 8.0 46,143
Totals 100.00 509,021 100.00 577,461




820015 16228V GLE'66S pund jejol

100'L ¥SL'Y ¥¥s Bsyi0
0si'el 00S'6 00S'6 Aunbe ayeaud Joj

paxieluies - 4seod asnoy uj
05€'6 0S€'6 05e'6 Auadoud soy

payJeules - ysed asnoy uj

(Zo'p) (68°5) {es'2) (96'6) (oz'p) 90°'L 599 08'S 12598y 182'65Y 186°6.S |ejol
V/IN 7N VIN VIN (98°92) oYL G99 (o¥'61) 042'6 60G°'L1 6LLT Ajnbe sjeaud - uosyjued

(z21) (08°21) (08'g1) (zgsl) (9272) (o) (oeg) (1¥°6) £G0'vE 000'9¢ GOS'LS ONI

- - - - - 9£6'61 - - Ajnb3 (eqoio-9 % 1

- - - - - ¥89'8. - - AnbI N %1

- - - - - - - 118 G/8'8l 662'82 Ajnb3 eqojo- ulsisuieg

M. - - - - - - - 106 229'L. G08'ZL1L Ajinb3 N~ uB)suleg
ayero Yy £8°¢ ¥6°€ ¥e'Z 1ee al'e 59§ 866°29 06€'¥9 06£'G9 awoouj paxid - Ayjeply
mwmo‘ 3} (zz 1) (z6'8) (sz'9) (ye0) vL8 1£'8 ov'8 6¥1'201 121'86 995'9Z1 sapinb3- Ayepid
Ql(se?) Gl'Y Gl'e ov'g (21°0) 60°€ ¥3'C 62 156'%9 LLL'e9 1629 awoou} paxi4- [eyded
(99°¢) (z99) (zog) (gz'01) (80'1) 606 65°8 108 961'€0L 609'G6 9yZ'szL soninb3- jeyden

% % % % % % % % 000.3 000.3 0003
600Z aunp 6002 6002 6002 aunp 600Z aunp 0¢ 0} 6002 dunr OE 0} [600Z duNf OE O} 6002 60°90°0¢ 60'€0'LE 80°c0'LE
0€ 03 200z jady |8unf o€ 0} L00Z | duUnr OE 0} 2002 | OE 01 2002 dy | j1udy joBuey snsioa | judy | 19618} % | judy | eBueyo | sunr og o} judy | suojenjeA | suojjenjea | suolieniea
| 19Be} snssen  |lldy | 18Biey 9, | judy | oBueyo | | sbueyo pung soueuuopad }ewyoueq % | | eBueyo pung e 19BN 1oe
aoueunopad Hewyousq % % paybem (+) 19n0/(-) JopUN % parubom
pasijenuue
(+) Janoy(-) Jopuf

S§334 40 SSOuD

6002 ANNT 0€ OL AIONVINYHO4¥Id aNNd

¢ XIONZddV




Page 44

"SONSS| pojejal-uoheIsuUNWSI UO SN0} Jejnoied e sey pue Wwes) soueul 81eiodiod sy} Jo Hed swuoy os|e uolouny Buljoa Axoid s, 7|4
‘siejew [eBa| pue suonoesuel) sjelodlod oyoads ‘ABajelis ajelodlod ‘uopisodwod Juswabeuew pue pseoq apnjoul Jybiw eoueul) ajelodiod
BUIAJOAUL SJaJIB "POAIOAUI BLI00aq Aew Wes) adueuly aeiodiod s, 7|4 ‘sesie aouepodwl Jenoiued Jo Jsjew B U0 SMIA Jo 9ouabiaAlp
e S aJay] aisyp) “seljod [e1oos pue [eluswiuodaue ‘syybll Jaployaleys ‘soueusanob ‘Buiped ‘suonessdo ‘ABsjesis Buipnjoul sseuisng
sAuedwoo e Jo sjoadse || sessedwoous anbojeiq ‘Auedwod 8y} Aq pajsoy sAep isAjeue je aouepusie pue suoljesado sAuedwod
ay] 99s 0] SUSIA 8lis olpolied ‘wes) suone|ay JO}SaAUl By} Ypm joejuod Ajyuow ‘a4 Jo 03D 8yl yum sbunesw soej-0}-e0e) Alisnenb
sepn|oul 1oBIU0D SIY] ‘sisAjeue Ajnba jo weay Jiay) ybnoiyy Ajuewnd psjjpuueyo st seluedwod yum juswebebus isy) jey) uiejdxa Aljepl4

910N

(%G€°0)
, ” ” Y.I8us ol
(%9¢°0)
” » ” BAIAY "6
(%8¢£°0)
3 " " BODUD7 BlISY 'Q
(%Z¥°0)
» R ) owoo0( 1IN £
(%2t '0)
. , , ONS 9
(%19°0)
. , , BUOJEPOA "G
(%S9°0)
” y , da v
(%29°0)
” , , O4dSH '€
(%69°0)
. . , ayooy ‘2
*Z lauenb ul siseq aoueulanob
10 |e1oos ._mu\cmrcco.__.>cm ue ‘MO|2(q
“1auenb uo Juswabebus Aue uayepuspun jou 9]0U 89S 1nNQ pPaAladal (%02°0)

siy} AuAnoe ON | eAey Aey) jey) pauodel eAey [ejde) s|iejsp olloads oN PIO .G, 119YS "L
juswsabebug juawabebug pun4
juswebebug JuswiysoAu] ajqisuodsay | juawiysaAu] ajqisuodsay | |ejo] jo abejuadiad
44dv1 Jo sjiejaq - jeuoljeuwsdju] jeyded jo sjiejag — Ajgepi4 | g sbuipjoy uaj doy

600Z aunp g Buipua Japienp) - AJIAIIOY Juawisanu] ajgisuodsay — sbulpjoH ua] Ajnb3 do) pung uoisuad — ¢ xipuaddy



Page 45

BIA SEM SBNSS| 9S8y} U)IM |eap 0} Aem ‘adoing
ajeudolidde ayy jey; yuiyl Jou pip Asyy | ul Abajens uonelauab
‘pJemio) Aem sy} uo SMSIA ‘uieyd Ajddns auj ui | jusioie pue ues|o

Jisy) Jolje 03 uonnjosas |y} Jo
siapoddns Jayjo JO JO SMBIA By}
Buisseaued pusiul osie 444V
‘puodsal 0} sue|d }} moy jnoge
Auedwoo ayy yum anbojeip
lelpawiWwl U 0}  pJemlo
Bupjoo] mou st 44dV1 %0V
Jano 0} juswebeuew Buntoddns
jou |ejo} ay) Bupjey suoisusisqe
yum‘uopniosal  44dv1 8ul Jo
JNOABJ Ul PBJOA Slaploysieys Jo
%L L8 "AINe ul WOV sAuedwod
3y} 1B U0 PBJOA SBM UOIN|OSSY
8y 'esoy pens J4ig uosiad suo
Aq pajjy Ajjusund S| ©ANoax3
JoIyo  pue ueuwlieypg  Jo
8j0J 8yl 010z AInp Ag uewuaieyo
Juspuadspul ue wiodde
0} o|gissod bBuyykiens  op
0] SRIN 8y} Jo} pajied uonnjosal

sajuedwoo Jayjo O} pajejal Os|e sased
asay| '00sa ] 0) a|qedydde Ajuo jou
ale Jeis awil-||ny pue Aouabe usamiaq
101JU0D By} pue 8nssi Aljsnpul ue sem
sanssi Jaljddns :smojjo} se papuodsad
aAljejUSSaIdal JIBU | "SIU) SSNosIp

0} 00s8] UiMm ||ed e pay [ejideD
"gapIIWIo) Ajjigisuodsay

a1elodio) s)i 0] SI0J0BIIP BANISXD
-UoU S} JO SUO ppe pinoys i jeuy}
Ajleul) pue ‘uoljeuiwLOSIp 8jeuiwi|e o}
Japio ui uieyod Ajddns Asynod pue jeaws
MM SI Ul sanssi Jnoge| sbeuew Jayaq
pinoys Auedwod ay) jey; ‘ssioiod
palels yjm aoueldwod ainseaw

0} sJojedipul souewlopad Aoy
dojonap 09s9] jey) pejsenbal Asy
‘Ajiqisuodsal 91e10di09 0} paje|al
SaAleNIul [BloAss pasodold ‘epun

Aq pa)| ‘siopjoyaleys JO WNIPOSU0D

spungioA  Jo  uoisuedxe
8y} spJjemo} aAow dApisod
e se siy} 8ss Ajepld 'NO'3
wolj syjueld somod oupAy jo
Jaguinu e palinboe aAey oym
euisny U Jojessuab  oupAy
abie] e ‘pungien yim jaw
Alljopi4 'S90IN0S 8jgemausl
woy; AbBssus jo uonessusb
ay; ur Bupjew aie Bupew
ale saiuedwod Aymnn Jamod
ssaliboid oy} Joliuow O}
panuiuod Ajepi4 o Buung

TOMOd o|qematny

‘AJISUSIUI UOQJED S} JOMO|
pinoo Auedwo) a8y} sAem
Buipuly punoje adounzy ul
siojesouab tomod aAisusul
-uogqied jsow a8y Jo auo’

ay | "uopnjosal Jopjoyaleys VY INOV S} 1B uoinjosal Japjoyaieys | MY YlIM SuoisSnosIp piay
e pay  d44dvT LD ul| ejojusidoal ey yesy punoj 0osa | | Anjepld “Japenb siyy Buung
SBIN 0983 Jo3Ie|N uoqied ayL
44dv1 [euojeussiu] jeyided Aepid

(44dV1) wnio4 pung uoisuad saiioyiny jeo2o"] pue siabeuep pung 2109
— 600Z dunp o¢ Buipua Japenp ANANROY JuswWisaAu] a|gisuodsay Jo uosuedwod

¢ xipuaddy



Page 46

‘Jipne pue uojjeiaunwas Se yons
SONSS| JOAO suUOnN|ISuUl [eloueUl
Jo Jequinu B yym juswabebus
ayeuapun 0} Buinunuos
S| pue SISUO |eloueul} JUSLIND
ay) Buimoy|o} wioes aoueulonob
Joj ysnd 0} SNURUOD [IIM 41dV]

UI10}31 99UBUIDA0D

"S9JeYS 9|qIaAUO0D aNnss| 0} Ajuoyine
S}l puaixe 0} Buiuueld sem elisny
wodele ] jeys judy uijuies| [ejde)
BLIISNY WOY39 1

9dUBUISA0K) 9jeiodio)

‘lesodoud ay) jsuiebe juswabeuew
UJIM PSJOA oM 1iBW pey suonsabbns
ays Jo ||e yey} @aibe jou pip

am sy "siayjo Buisoddo sjiym ueld sy}
Jo sjoadse swos poddns o} sjqissod
10U SEM ]I ‘UO B)OA 0} Sieployaleys
10} uonnjosail a|buls e se psajuasaid
alom suonsabbns Jopjoyaieys

ay) sy ‘onb sniejs ayy dooy

0} paiisjeid )i ples 00Sa] ‘|enplaipul
1Y) Uo ainssald [Bula)Xe SAISS8IXd
ur Jnsal pjnom 1 Ajjigisuodsai
a)e.i0dl102 JO peay 8q 0} J0Joalip

auo pajuiodde J1 §I pue ‘Ayjigisuodsai
9)ei0di09 Joj ajgisuodsas Apuiof

9q p|inoys pieoq s} JO ||e }|9} 0S8 |
‘sjusuodoud ayy wouy uonsabbns
9|qISUas JSOW 8y} usaq pey siuy

1ey) pealibe 00sa] "paiapisuod Buleq
sem uoisabbns J0jo8lIp aAlNOSXS-UoU
ay) Jaylaym payse sp\ “Suoipuod
M3IABI 0} sJolddns SY JO ||e PaYISIA
pey }i PaLWLIIJUOD 00S9 | "sesnge Jo
9oUBpIAS oU papiroid pey sjusuodoid
ay} 1ey) penbie soAnejuasaidal

8y "uonnjosal NOY ue

WINWIUIW Mojeq Sojel abem
e poakoldwe bBuidqg Jnoge|
juelbiw pue unoge| piyo jo
wawAojdwae ay) jo siaiddns
sy 1sBuowe sased BuiAuapi
49V SMO||0} SiyL * Yewld
Jo siBumo  (49V)spood
ysplgd pajeossy
yum senssi ureyo Aiddns
pessnosip  Ajlepld ZO u|

inoqe-T [ebsjj| ® PIIYD

‘sjoefoid

[an} o1q uo Bupjom SI Ydiym
Z)ipuy pue siayy ayenoed
[ossip jo juswdojprsp SH
Buipnpour suoissiwe bBuonpal
io}  soibejens  eulwexs
0] Jobuipibu3 siainjoenuew
sued ajigowojne
yim  jewl  osje  Ayepid
‘SJED 211109|9 JO Juswdo|anap
ay} pue s||90 |ony
uabolpAy ‘sejIysA  pughy
Jo asn ay} Buipnpul ‘yneusy
pue AAANG Siodewolne ypm
suoissiwe  zOD bupnpal
0} suonn|os |eoibojouyos} auy
passnosip Ayepl4 2o bulng
yodsuel] ajgeule}sng

44dV1

jeuoneuajuj jeyided

Ayjepid




Page 47

By} eAeY SIapjoyaleys pue ‘iealk

SIY) UojUSHE JO 10| B pajoeljje aAey
Jejnoiued up syuswAed adouelansag
‘sjoble} aouewlopad JO 2INSO[OSIP

Ou 10 9)))l] dABY JeY) SaWByds
BAIUBDUI pue sabexoed aouelonss
10B.1U00 9ble| ‘sueid uondo }o0)s
BAISSOX8 ‘saleys Jo uonnjip ybiy

0} anp s)0ljeq youal4 uo sjesodold
snoJawnu jsuiebe 8)0A Ajuanbaly
jeyde) ‘sepuabe Bunosw Japjoyaleys
J19y} UO SWid)l JOAO saluedwod youal4
[BJOASS U)IM SUOISSNOSIP play [ended

‘epusbe ay) woJ} uonnjosal alnus

ayy Buinowal Jo uonoe Buouys ay) 300}
pue ‘Ajioyine ay) Buipuaxe jsuiebe
papioap Ajjeuly Aueduwod ay} ‘SI0}SaAUl
JBY)0 pue JsAjeue J0)08s s |elden
UM suoissnosip Buimoljo4 ‘suiay
JeaA-jinw 0) pasoddo se Ajjenuue
slap|oyaleys 0} apew aq 0} sjsenbal
yons Jaald Ajjessuab pue ‘Alessaoau
sem Ajoyine ay} |99} Jou pip

[eyde) ‘siapjoyaleys o) |ejuswi}ep
u®aq dABY PINOM UdIYm ‘%02

jo uonnjip [enuajod e yim Aynba jo
9oUBNSS| 8y} 10} pamojje Ajuoyine ay |
'$9|qIB8AU0D Jo Ajinba anssi O} ‘alidxe
0] anp Sem yoiym ‘Ajioyine Jeah

-oAl Bulisixa ue pey Auedwod sy

"JUSWISOAIP
jeuonniisul Ul ynsal  Aewl
yoiym syonpoud 0] aunsodxa
[euoneindal pue  OILIOUODD
|yl ueses pue  adkoy
s|loy  ‘sweisAs Jvg uim
passnosip Ajllepi4 o Buung
s.lainjoejnuep w:onmw>>
"S|9A3|

44dVv

jeuoneusayu| jeyiden

Ayjepid




Page 48

alem alay) pue ‘pauodal uey)
J3jjews yonw aq p|nom juswAed sy}
JO 9z1s 9|qeqoud ay} jey) seoueinsse
awos |euden anlb 0} 9|qe a1am
soAneuasaldal Jisy | ‘Auedwod ay)
ypm abexoed aouelianss 8y} JO 8zis
By} JOAO SUIBOU0D UMO INO passaldxd
3M ‘} 1suiebe 8]0 SI0)SaAul
papusWILOdal— JapInoid 82IAI8S
Axold Aoy e—soLjounsty se jesodoud
ay) Joj poddns Japjoyaleys ainoss 0
uaay Sem d2aInojjeA ‘1znou) addijiyd
‘0390 Auedwod syl 0} JuawAed
aoueIaASS e aaoldde 0} uoinjosal
8y} passnosip M\ “ABN ul WOV

S}i JO peaye dainojje A wuiy Alsuiyoew
yousi4 8y} yim axods osie jejde)
‘woddns o} Apxun

aq pinom [ejide) jey) suoinjosal uo
}oeqpaay apiaold 0} pue uoiediyued
%99S 01 ‘SN OY JIsy} 1e Buijoa

0] Joud JuswuodiAUg BIJOdA pue
[ea10,T Y)m suoissnosip pjay [eyded

‘sobeyoed asay) jsuiebe sajoA
Auowwod 199 *(snuoq pue Aiejes)
uonesuadwod yseo jenuue, sieak
OM] ylom aq 0} sjuswied, aynyoeled
uap|ob, asay) Joj douURI4 Ul UOWWIOD
S1 )] "S8AINO8Xa [enpiAlpul Joy aoeld

ul sjuswaalbe uo a8)oA 0} Ayunpuoddo

EELLA

jeuoijeusayu] jeyden

Ayjepid




Page 49

‘dnoio) |lejoy

SWIOH pue SSajalIp B d1qe) ‘edeydu
apnjoul saoljod uofeisunwal
aAlNoaXa 1oy} 0} sabueyo

pasodolid uo jeyden paynsuod

18] saluedwon "sanssi souewIBA0b Jo
abuel e MaIABL 0] ‘pasaliey) plepuels
Buipnjoul ‘seiuedwod jo Jaquinu

e yjim pabebus |eyde) ‘snoge
pap.ooal sbungawl ay) 0} uolippe u|

:sbunssw Auedwo)

‘11 Jsuiebe 1.0 a1om SBJ0A JO %,/
eoyubis e ‘pajdope sem uoinjosal
ayy ybnoy] ‘jesodoud sy} poddns

0] a|ge aiom |ejide)) pue pasies
sjulod ay} pasepisuod pey Auedwod
Byl 1yl }|o} Sem }I uUOl}eSISAU0D

By} JO }nsal B Sy "SpJeme aleys pue
SNUOQ JO UOISNOUI Y} UO Suoljejiwl|

44dV1

jeuoneuiaju| jeyuden

Ayjepid




Page 50

(eLg) (906°6) (ees'e) (009'82) s{ejoL
2852 (L0g'2) (e£8'p) (005°¥1) SJUBLWI}SAAUL UO UINJaI 19N
$9010AUl Siebeuepy pund 4o Jdiooal jo Buiwiy |(88Y) FAWA 002'1L 009'e sasuadxa juswabeuew JusWISaAU|
(£9) 19 00Z uonexe |
‘s1abeueyy pund Ino Aq ui pajseaul sejuedwod uodn Juspuade( | /80°C (c10'c) (o0L'9) (oog‘gl) SLIOOU} JUBWI}SaAUY
JUBLLISBAL] UO SUINISY
(506°2) (509°'2) (00L'y) (001 'v1) siaquiawl Y}im sbuijeap woij uolippe 19N
(6z¢'L) 0.£°01 669°L1 001 ainjipuadxa [ejoL
(s61) GS 052 0S. sosuadxa aALRISIUILPY
(91) L Ll 0S SUOINQLIUCD UO SpUNyaY
saueA Buiwy pue SWNOA | 91€ 69'1L £ee'lL 000't pted sanjea Jajsuel |
“anp swins pue Bullal yess Jo Jaquinu ayy uodn Juapuadeq {(/8¢) 6.2 99lL‘L 00S'S swns dwnj
(£%0'1) 988°. £€6'8 008'9Z S}jausq J8Yjo pue suolsuad
:aanyipuadxy
(9.28°4) (g16'L1) (66£'91) (o0z'6) awodui [ejo
saleA Bujwy pue swnjoA |(S0L°4) (8e0'e) (ege't) {(000'%) paAIBoaY SON[eA Jajsuelt
awsYyos Jo Jno pue ol Bullsjsues; Jejs jo apelb pue Jequinu uo juspuada( | /81 (62€'L1L) (995‘L1) (002'v€) suonnguIuoy Jekodwg
(8%) (gss'e) (00s'e) (00G'ol) suolngLyuo sakodws
‘S)IyeuUsq pUE SUOHNAIIU0D
aLoou|
000.3 0003 0003 000.3
suofeleA jo suonijeue|dxd ¥ poliad 0} ¥ v 1e6png
{-) J]opunuaaQ  |poued o) lenjoy |pouad o} ueid | 01/6002

(600Z AINr 40 AN3) ¥ AOIY3d - LINTWNIDOVNVIN L3DANG

aNNd SNOISNZd

S XiGN3ddVv




Page 51 Agenda ltem 9

Haringey Councii

Agenda item:

Pensions Committee On 17 September 2009

Report Title: Consultation Draft: LGPS-Delivering Affordability, Viability and
Fairness

Report of The Chief Financial Officer

Signed :

Contact Officer : Colin Duck-Corporate Finance
Telephone 020 8489 3731

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non key decision

1. Purpose of the report
1.1 To formulate a response to the Consultation Draft

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member

2.1 Not applicable.

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:
3.1. Not applicable

4. Recommendation

4.1 That a response to the Consultation exercise initiated by the Communities and
Local Government Department be formulated.




Page 52

5. Reason for recommendation
5.1.To determine a basis for responding to the Consultation exercise .
6. Other options considered
6.1. None.
7. Summary
7.1.The Communities and Local Government Department is seeking responses to a
consultation exercise which is considering changes to the current methodology
concerning Pension Fund solvency and funding. Changes to employee tariff’'s are
also considered.
8. Head of Legal Services Comments
8.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report.
There are no specific legal comments on the report other than a general comment
that the Committee must act in the interests of the fund and its stakeholders in
considering the consultation response and take appropriate advice from its financial
advisers.
9. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments
9.1.There are no equalities issues arising from this report.
10. Consultation
10.1 Not applicable.
11. Service Financial Comments
11.1. It is important to ensure that any changes to the funding methodology of the
LGPS retain the principle of full funding and recognise the need to provide an
equitable balance between employers, stakeholders and taxpayers.
12. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

14.2 Appendix 1 Letter dated 25 June 2009 from Communities and Local
Government setting out details of a consultation exercise.

14.3 Appendix 2 Response to the Consultation provided by the Council’s
Consulting Actuary Hymans Robertson

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 53

13.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Letter dated 25 June 2009 from Communities and Local Government

14

15

16

17

Introduction

14.1

The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government (C & LG) has
initiated a consultation exercise (Appendix A) to consider some possible
amendments which initially focus, for reasons of scheme stability and viability,
on the 2010 valuation exercise. The following is a summary of the proposals.

Scope of Consultation

15.1

15.2

The propositions principally focus on the important regulatory and operational
relationships between the actuarial valuation exercise and the requirement of
each LGPS administering authority to produce and maintain a Funding Strategy
Statement.

In addition, proposals are included for a re-alignment of the employee member
pension tariff, with particular emphasis on the contribution of higher paid
members towards their pension benefits.

Current Public Service Pension Policy Context

16.1

The Government's overall commitment to public service pension provision is
that schemes must remain affordable and sustainable in the long term, and be
consistent with the principle of fairness for all tax payers and between
generations.

Actuarial valuations and Funding Strategy Statements

17.1

17.2

Ministers are of the view that unless some adjustments are made to stabilise
the treatment of scheme liabilities at the 2010 valuation and so mitigate any
short term adverse impacts of the current economic recession on the scheme,
the effect on members, employers and tax payers could be disproportionately
significant in terms of increased costs which could be reflected in council tax
bills from 1 April 2011.

At present the actuarial exercise and its attendant regulatory structures
involving Funding Strategy Statements and Statements of Investment
Principles are in place to protect tax payers interests through the efficient long
term management of liabilities within a prudent regulatory framework.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 3



17.3

Page 54

Despite this regulatory stability and its interaction with funding strategies there
remains the likelihood of an adverse 2010 valuation outcome. Ministers are of
the view that a closer regulatory re-alignment between the two could be useful
to counter any risks that might otherwise adversely affect employers costs and
tax payers and hence the on going stability of the scheme. The following are
proposed to stabilise future scheme costs arising from the 2010 valuation
exercise.

18 A possible new approach to solvency

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

Comments are invited on a proposition that new contribution rates will be set at
future valuations at a level that will ensure that over time sufficient monies are
available to meet all employer liabilities.

At present shortfalls, or deficits are identified by pension actuaries by reference
to 100% funding in the long term.

Stakeholders have expressed the view that a 100% target can be artificial and
imposes significant short term pressures on employers during periods of

economic downturn due to falling investment returns. In addition, it fails to take
in to account the effect on employers who have to meet cost increases upfront.

The actuarially defined target of 100% funding creates the concept of a deficit
whenever the valuation outcome drops below this figure. Consequently
commentators misinterpret this event as creating an immediate cost penalty to
tax payers. The essence of the proposition in the paper is to better reflect local
funding dynamics. The paper draws a distinction between liquidity (a measure
of the ability to pay pensions as they become due) and solvency ( the capacity
of scheme employers to meet the pensions promise). At present this becomes
a target of 100% funding. The draft questions whether fund authorities need to
build up what is tantamount to a financial reserve in the process of achieving
that solvency level.

The proposition of a more flexible model to reflect the constitutional
permanence of local government is raised. This would involve the introduction
of a new Financing Plan underpinned by a completely new funding strategy and
secondly, the establishment of funding targets locally by fund authorities within
much of the existing funding and valuation framework.

19 Financing Plans

19.1

Report Template: Formal Bodies

The first approach would mean that instead of fund authorities coming forward
with full (100%) funding plans to make good all past service deficits, it is
suggested that integral to the preparation of their funding Strategy Statements,
each LGPS administering authority would additionally prepare and maintain a
Financing Plan. This would demonstrate how over the short, medium and long



19.2

19.3

Page 55

term, they will fund pension liabilities for their fund and for each employer
bodies.

A Financing Plan could include the following key components:

Base information
- Short to medium cash flow projections
- Actuarial estimate of long term funding needs
- Current funds and projected changes

e Key assumptions

 Risk management analysis

» Employing body contribution rates to provide sufficient resources to meet
liability projections for the fund overall and for each employing body

» Certification of the plan by the fund officer responsible for the administration of
the funds affairs and the appointed actuary

» Agreement to the Financing Plan by the authority’s formal pension committee,
after proper consultation with all interested parties.

Whilst the proposed Financing Plan would have the effect of removing the
current actuarially set long term solvency test involving a ‘deficit’ funding
approach it would, at the same time, introduce a funding regime based on a
much shorter time frame. As a consequence it may be regarded by some
commentators as being inconsistent with current funding best practice. In any
event any move away from long term 100% funding targets must retain the
confidence of all stakeholders in being able to meet its statutory- based pension
promise.

20 Local Funding Targets

20.1

20.2

20.3

An alternative approach could involve retaining the existing scheme funding
regime but additionally would allow an LGPS administering authority to adopt a
long term funding target which would not always be set out 100%. Justification
for less than 100% funding, including its sustainability, would need to be made
within the published Funding Strategy Statement.

Although long term funding targets would remain the new adjustment is
intended to ensure that any longer term funding shortfall would be recovered
within a prudentially set and publicly accountable timescale.

Itis not intended to give administering authorities unfettered power to set
funding levels and employer contribution rates. The intention is for the normal
pre and post valuation dialogue between administering authorities, fund
actuaries, and other stakeholders to continue with the view to reaching an
agreed funding position in the light of the valuation exercise

Report Template: Formal Bodies 5



Page 56

20.4 It is intended that the proposed regulatory changes will put beyond doubt that
ultimately it is for each administering authority, and most importantly its elected
committee members to have the final say on questions of affordability and
sustainability and fairness to local tax payers, within the framework set by the
scheme’s regulations framework.

21 Next Steps

21.1 Consultees are invited to comment on both how a proposed financing plan
approach could apply, when read in conjunction with the existing Statements of
Investment Principles and Funding Strategy Statements, and also how to
ensure that fund authorities are able to adopt favourable, short term positions
consistent with their long term pension liability. Alternatively, consultees are
invited to comment on whether there is merit in the other approach involving
locally selected funding targets, also within the framework established by
existing Funding Strategy Statements and Statements of Investment Principles.
Responses are required by 30 September 2009.

22 Views of the Council’s Consulting Actuary

221 The Council's consulting actuary Hymans Robertson has provided a response
to the consultation exercise and this is attached as Appendix B. Hymans views
may be summarised as follows:

» They support the concept of financing plans, including, a requirement for a risk
assessment to be carried out, if these demonstrably improve transparency and
governance. It is Hymans’ view that this could be achieved within the existing
regulatory framework through revised guidance on the Funding Strategy
Statements rather than through new regulations;

 Hymans do not support local funding targets and note that these already exist
because of the different methods and assumptions being used to place a value
on the assets and liabilities of the LGPS;

e Hymans do not support the proposals relating to a revised contribution tariff for
employees because contribution rates were revised as recently as 1 April
2008. Consequently, a further change at this stage could cause a
disproportionate administrative burden and member confusion and may make
it more difficult to recruit and retain members earnings over £100,000;

» Assets and liabilities of LGPS funds should be assessed and disclosed on a
consistent basis to enable all stakeholders to validly compare different funding
approaches;

 The funding framework must have an increased focus on the interaction
between contributions and investment strategy and require a meaningful
degree of risk assessment and disclosure of risks relating to employers who
are not directly funded by tax payers and finally,

» Whatever measures are put in place to secure a satisfactory outcome from the
2010 valuation from a local authority/tax payer perspective, it must be clear

Report Template: Formal Bodies 6



Page 57

that they do not obviate the need to review the benefit structure to secure the
longer- term affordability and sustainability of the Scheme.

23 Proposed basis of response to C & LG Consultation

23.1 Having carefully considered the points raised in C & LG's letter, and the
response of the Council’s Consulting Actuary, Hymans Robertson, a proposed
response for Members to consider is as follows:

23.2 Whatever methodology is adopted in order to define and underpin the notion of
solvency i.e. ‘Financing Plans’ and/or ‘Local Funding Targets’ the detailed
procedures supporting any change must be clear. In the case of ‘Local Funding
Targets’, C & LG’ s letter could be interpreted, due to its lack of clarity, as a
partial abandonment of the concept of full funding. Should this concept be
conceded for matters of short term expediency (e.g. concerns about an adverse
2010 valuation outcome) a potential funding burden could fall on future
generations of taxpayers/stake holders which could manifest itself in increased
contributions and/or reduced scheme benefits.

23.3 By contrast, ‘Financing Plans’ (which would in effect be deficit recovery plans)
would give greater emphasis and support to the existing governance structure
of Statements of Investment Principles and Funding Strategy Statements.

234 Turning to the proposed Employee Contribution Tariff it is considered that it
would be inappropriate to make the suggested changes at this juncture for the
following reasons;

- overall employee contributions to the Scheme are not forecast to change ;

- the current tariff was introduced on 1 April 2008. A further change so soon is
likely to cause an unnecessary administrative burden due to the number and
complexity of the tariff bands: and

- no evidence is provided to assess the impact of the proposals on the future
pattern of recruitment and retention of staff.

24 Recommendation

23.4 Members views are sought on the Consultation exercise in order that a
response is made on behalf of the administering authority by 30 September
20089.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 7



Page 58 APPENDIX 1

T B J Crossley
Deputy Director
Workforce, Pay and Pensions

LGPS Stakeholders in Local Government Finance Directorate

England and Wales

Zone 5/F5 Eland House

(Addressees attached) Bressenden Place

London SW1E 5DU

Direct line: 020 7944 5970
Fax: 020 7944 6019

Web sites: www.communities.gov.uk

25 June 2009

Dear Colleague,

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME
DELIVERING AFFORDABILITY, VIABILITY
AND FAIRNESS

This informal consultation exercise begins a series of steps to consider
some possible amendments which initially focus for reasons of Scheme
stability and viability on the 2010 Scheme valuation exercise. A later,
separate exercise, will consider new ways in which the LGPS could
possibly be reformed to provide more workforce - focused provision
pension for the 21° century. \

Ministers wish to see the full engagement of all stakeholders in this
particular exercise to secure a consensus quickly on a number of
practical and reasonable amendments to the Scheme’s regulatory
framework to beneficially impact on the conduct and outcomes of the
2010 valuation and to assist in maintaining Scheme viability generally.
A parallel, separate consultation exercise on the broader debate,
announced when John Healey spoke at the NAPF Local Authority
Conference on 19 May, about the longer term future of the Scheme,
and how it might best respond to changes in the workplace, workforce
and economy will issue shortly.

Background

The LGPS, as provided in England and Wales, is a statutory, public
service, funded, occupational pension scheme which provides
guaranteed pension benefits to local authority employees, and to
employees of related and admitted employers.



Page 59

The Scheme’s local administering authorities pay benefits and manage
its pension funds within the terms set out in secondary legislation made
under the Superannuation Act 1972. A prudential regulatory framework
provides Scheme pension fund administering authorities with all the
necessary powers to manage and invest their pension funds.
Investment income generated, as well as the operating and other costs
incurred, is the responsibility of the appropriate LGPS administering
authority; any surplus is available to reduce employers’ liabilities and to
re-invest within the authority’s investment strategy.

At the 31 March 2007 triennial actuarial valuation, funds’ total assets
were valued at £132 billion with liabilities totalling £159 billion giving a
shortfall between assets and liabilities of £27 billion, or a scheme-wide
funding level of 83% (up from 74% in 2004).

The LGPS provides inflation-linked pension benefits based on a
member’s final salary at retirement and has some 3.7 million members.
Stewardship, policy and regulatory responsibilities for the Scheme in
England and Wales rest with the Secretary of State for Communities
and Local Government.

A major Scheme reform saw the introduction from 1 April 2008 of a
new-look LGPS including revised benefit terms. The Scheme’s accrual
rate was improved from 1/80ths to 1/60ths with the normal retirement
age of 65 years being retained and new ill health provisions and other
benefit adjustments within a fixed, agreed cost-envelope. Employees
currently contribute between 5.5% and 7.5% of their pay on a set tariff
which yields about 6.4% of total payroll. Employers’ contributions, fixed
until 31 March 2011, are adjusted following the triennial valuation of
individual LGPS pension funds. Each individual pension fund authority
is required to set an employers’ level of contribution to ensure its fund
is solvent and able to meet its existing and future liabilities.

Scope of consultation

8.

This discussion document sets out initial suggestions for stakeholders
to consider as a feasible and balanced response to the current stock
market impacts on LGPS pension fund liabilities likely to be identified in
the forthcoming 2010 valuation exercise. The propositions principally
focus on the important regulatory and operational relationship between
the actuarial valuation exercise and the requirement on each LGPS
administering authority to produce and maintain a Funding Strategy
Statement. It would be appropriate also to support the proposals with
new advice to stakeholders on the issue of Scheme funding, cost
stability and security.

In addition, and alongside the introduction of the new LGPS cost-
sharing regime, this may be an opportune time also to consider a re-
alignment of the employee member pension contribution tariff, and
particularly the proportion of pensionable pay being contributed by
higher paid members Towards their pension benefits.



10.

11.

Page 60

Ministers wish to see an authoritative, evidence-based debate on a
range of elements which fall within the Scheme’s current framework. It
is proposed to issue a paper shortly which sets out several policy
themes for analysis and discussion by Scheme stakeholders about the
possible future direction of the LGPS in the medium/ longer terms.

Both strands need, to be seen within the broad context of all public
service pension schemes. Communities and Local Government
remains in close touch with other relevant sponsoring Government
Departments, as well as Scheme-specific stakeholders.

Current public service pension policy context

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Government's overall commitment to public service pension
provision generally and for the Local Government Pension Scheme in
England and Wales in particular, is that such schemes remain
affordable and sustainable in the long term, be consistent with the
principle of fairness for all taxpayers and between generations.

Ministers are on record regarding their intentions to ensure that the
LGPS can continue to meet the needs of its stakeholders. Their policy
for the Scheme is one based on affordable retention within the broad
national policy parameters expressed above. At the same time, the
guarantees that underpin such arrangements, supported by taxpayers,
require the terms of the Scheme to be kept under review, to reflect best
practice and continue to be fair and cost-effective in terms of the level
of provision and the cost of delivery.

The provision of a good quality occupational pension provision is a key
part of the total remuneration package of public servants. The Local
Government Association see the LGPS as an essential component of
the total reward package currently available to recruit, retain and to
motivate local authority employees. The local authority trade unions
take much the same view.

However, in providing any level of public sector benefit provision, it is
acknowledged by stakeholders that it remains essential to ensure an
equitable balance at all times between the full cost of providing LGPS
benefits within that statutory, guaranteed framework, and the standard
of the actual pension benefits provided by the Scheme for its
membership.

In assessing the prospect of any possible regulatory changes to the
LGPS in England and Wales, the Government wishes to continue to
maintain a viable and affordable Scheme, one that caters for its current
and future workforces’ needs and which remains fair both to providers
and beneficiaries, as well as to taxpayers who ultimately guarantee its
pension promise.



Page 61

Actuarial valuations and Funding Strateqy Statements

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

The next LGPS actuarial valuation exercise in England and Wales,
required by regulation 36 of the 2008 Administration regulations, takes
place as at 31 March 2010. This event, along with the influences of
each administering authority's Funding Strategy Statement and
Statements of Investment Principles, will determine new rates of
Scheme employer contributions from 1 April 2011 until 31 March 2014.
The subsequent valuation takes place on 31 March 2013.

Many stakeholders believe that unless some adjustments are made to
stabilise the treatment of scheme liabilities at the 2010 valuation, and
so mitigate any short term adverse impacts of the current economic
recession on the Scheme, the effect on members, employers and
taxpayers could be disproportionately significant in terms of increased
costs and so potentially council tax bills from 1 April 2011,
notwithstanding the application of the new LGPS cost share / capping
provisions.

The actuarial valuation exercise and its attendant regulatory structures
involving Funding Strategy Statements and Statements of Investment
Principles, are in place to protect taxpayers’ interests through the
efficient long term management of liabilities within a prudent regulatory
framework. Regulation 36 (6)(b) of the LGPS Administration
Regulations 2008 requires that contribution increases for employers in
general, following each valuation exercise, should be set at as constant
a rate as possible, and each LGPS administering authority engages
with its actuary to determine how best to focus on the longer term
funding plan each LGPS fund authority needs to achieve that position.

The 2010 valuation exercise will provide regulatory stability and
discipline, and its interaction with funding strategies which continue to
statutorily protect taxpayers, and guarantee the pension promise for
Scheme members. Nevertheless, there remains the likelihood of an
adverse 2010 outcome. Ministers believe that a closer regulatory
realignment, therefore, between the two could be useful to counter any
risks that might otherwise adversely affect employers costs and
taxpayers and the on-going stability of the Scheme.

The following paragraphs explore steps to stabilise future Scheme
costs arising from the 2010 valuation exercise. The propositions draw
on the outcome of views expressed by key national stakeholders in
recent discussions. Liaison will continue with the interested parties
over the coming months, particularly on the details of actual proposals
and any necessary guidance, including the involvement of the LGPS
Policy Review Group.



Page 62

A possible new approach to solvency

22.

23.

24.

25,

26.

27.

Consultees are invited to comment on a proposition involving an
amendment to the Scheme regulations, which already include a
specific (but undefined) solvency requirement (Regulation 36(5) of the
2008 Administration Regulations), and modify it with a provision which
requires each fund’s actuary, first to take full account of the affordability
of employers’ liabilities to pay pensions and to meet liabilities when
undertaking three-yearly fund actuarial valuations and, second, to
ensure consistency with an administering authority’s funding objectives
as set out in its Funding Strategy Statement.

In practice, this will result in new employer contribution rates being set
at each valuation at such a level as to ensure that, over time, sufficient
monies are available as required to meet all employers’ liabilities.

Although a shortfall or deficit may be identified by individual fund
valuations, it appears to be the case across the Scheme that
contribution rates are set by pension actuaries, for each triennial
valuation period, to ensure that the fund will be able to meet its
pensions promise by achieving 100% funding in the long term, to meet
the funding strategy set by the administering authority.

Stakeholders have mentioned in recent discussions that a uniform
100% funding target can become artificial and impose significant short
term cost pressures on employers during times of economic downturn
and falling investment returns. It fails also to take into account the
effect on employers’ who have to meet cost increases up front, and
over the short term, when in every case this is far from justified.

For the LGPS, the effect has implications for council tax payers,
particularly in the current economic recession. Measuring the Scheme,
therefore, against an actuarially-defined notional 100% funding target
automatically creates the concept of a deficit-event whenever the
funding ratio falls below 100%. This is frequently misinterpreted by
commentators as creating an immediate, and global cost penalty for
council tax payers. The essence of the proposition in this paper,
therefore, is to consider better reflecting in the regulations the actual
local funding dynamics of the Scheme and to remove the opportunity
for any negative interpretations which can fail to understand the
Scheme’s inherent funding disciplines and its protections for taxpayers
and members, along side its regulatory permanence.

Although liquidity is a measure of the ability to pay pensions as they
become due, solvency is concerned with the capacity and status of
scheme employers to meet the pensions promise. That means having
sufficient assets to meet all future pension liabilities. At present, this
test often becomes a target of 100% funding but, given the strong
liquidity of the Scheme, the constitutional permanence of local
government and a strong employers’ covenant, it is questionable
whether fund authorities need to build up what, in effect, amounts to a
financial reserve in the process of achieving that solvency level.



28.

29.

30.

31.

Page 63

Clearly, a financial reserve and investment assets, are needed to meet
short-term liquidity requirements but, equally, setting employer
contribution rates at a level to achieve long term funding targets can be
considered to be a blunt instrument which imposes unrealistic and
burdensome short/medium term costs on scheme employers, and,
potentially, council taxpayers.

Looking ahead, therefore, a more flexible model might be appropriate,
to better reflect the individual circumstances of each pension fund
authority and which takes full account of the long term constitutional
permanence of local government, its employer covenant and its
statutory basis. In informal discussions with stakeholders, two separate
sets of proposals have emerged. First, involving the introduction of a
new Financing Plan underpinned by a completely new funding strategy
and secondly, the establishment of funding targets set locally by fund
authorities within much of the existing funding and valuation framework.

Financing Plans

The first approach would mean that, instead of fund authorities coming
forward with full (100%) funding recovery plans to make good all past
service deficits, it is suggested that, integral to the preparation of their
Funding Strategy Statements, each LGPS administering authority could
additionally prepare and maintain a Financing Plan to demonstrate how
over the short, medium and then long term, they will fund pension
liabilities for their fund and for each of its employer bodies. The
Financing Plan would detail and determine local future income streams
and how it is proposed to manage the funding of long term liabilities,
demonstrating that it has taken a prudent approach, based always on
reasonable, realisable assumptions and qualified professional advice. It
would also take into account local budgetary constraints and recognise
the reality of local resource and other parameters within which each
fund must operate.

A Financing Plan could include the following key components and
these could, in due course, be reflected in the regulations, or in
authoritative guidance: -

e base information :-
o short to medium cash flow projections
o actuarial estimate of long term funding needs
o current funds and projected changes
e Kkey assumptions
e risk management analysis
e employing body contribution rates to provide sufficient resources
to meet the liability projections for the fund overall and each
employing body
o certification of the plan by the fund officer responsible for the
administration of the fund’s affairs and the appointed actuary



32.

33.

34.

35.

Page 64

e agreement to the Financing Plan by the authority’'s formal
pension committee, after proper consultation with all interested
parties.

This approach would require formal amendments to the Scheme’s
regulations to require the preparation and inclusion of new Financing
Plans, within an amended Funding Strategy Statement, no later than 1
October 2010 or another date following the 2010 valuation, and no later
than six months after the valuation date specified. This is intended to
ensure that strategic decisions taken by individual local administering
authorities on funding and contribution levels are prudent and viable,
locally transparent and capable of delivering secure, guaranteed
payments alongside regular monitoring. It would provide a clear
regulatory-based timetable over which individual LGPS funds can meet
their own, locally adopted, prudently funded and financed payment
plans.

However, the Department is mindful that the proposed Financing Plan,
whilst having the effect of removing the current actuarially-set long term
solvency test involving a “deficit funding” approach, would, at the same
time, introduce a funding regime based on a much shorter time frame
which may be regarded by some commentators as being inconsistent
with current funding best practice. Although the policy aim would be to
stabilise pension costs going forward at the same time as moving away
from rigid, long term 100% funding targets, it is equally important that
the Scheme retains the confidence of all stakeholders in being able to
meet its statutory-based pension promise. No changes are envisaged
to the Scheme regulations which currently require specific provisions to
set employers’ contributions to retain a constancy which eliminates any
possibility of contributions being reduced and continues to ensure
stability.

Local Funding Targets

An alternative approach could involve essentially retaining the existing
Scheme funding regime but additionally would allow an LGPS
administering authority to adopt a long-term funding target which would
not necessarily always be set at 100%, provided this could be
sustained and transparently justified by the pension fund administering
authority within its published Funding Strategy Statement.

Long term funding targets would, therefore, continue to be an essential
feature of the Funding Strategy Statement, as indeed would deficit
recovery plans over a locally chosen period. This new adjustment
could ensure that any longer-term funding shortfall could be recovered
within a prudentially-set, and publically accountable timescale. It
stabilises pension costs going forward, without losing sight of the fact
that the Scheme must meet its statutory pension promise.



36.

37.

38.

Page 65

This does not mean that LGPS administering authorities are to be given
unfettered powers to set funding levels and employer contribution rates.
That would be to deny the prudentially critical role of the valuation and
subsequent actions by the administering authority. The intention rather
is for the normal pre-and post-valuation dialogue between
administering authorities, fund actuaries, and other stakeholders to
continue with the view to reaching an agreed funding position in the
light of the valuation exercise outcome. However, the proposed
regulatory changes would put beyond doubt that ultimately it is for each
locally administering authority, and most importantly its elected
committee members, to have the final say on questions of affordability
and sustainability and fairness to local taxpayers, within the framework
set by the Scheme’s regulatory framework.

Next steps

Discussions with stakeholders are being arranged to consider the
merits of these possible new arrangements which could then be carried
forward into draft amending regulations to be issued later in the year as
a statutory consultation. Detailed guidance could be prepared with the
assistance of CIPFA, to help LGPS authorities prepare for any
regulatory changes.

Consultees are therefore invited to comment on both how a proposed
financing plan approach could apply, when read in conjunction with the
existing Statements of Investment Principles and Funding Strategy
Statements, and also how to ensure that fund authorities are able to
adopt favourable short term positions consistent with their long term
pension liabilities. Alternatively, consultees are invited to comment on
whether there is merit in the other approach involving locally selected
funding targets, also within the framework established by existing
Funding Strategy Statements and Statements of Investment Principles.

A Revised Employee Contribution Tariff

39.

40.

A proposition is also being considered to amend the existing LGPS
tariff which set the level of employee contributions linked to their
pensionable pay, with new, higher tariffs for members who annually
earn in excess, say, of £75,000, together with an extension of the lower
rate of contributions for the lower paid.

The new LGPS Scheme introduced on 1% April 2008 included a new
banded contribution arrangement with a top level of 7.5% of
pensionable pay for those whose earnings are in excess £75,000.
However, it is now believed that there are many high earners in the
local government workforce who are paying a proportionately modest
amount towards their pension benefits.



Page 66

At the same time, given the very high proportion of part-time employees
in the Scheme, it is seems equitable to re-consider the extent, in tariff
terms, of the lower rate of 5.5% of pensionable pay. This latter step
should directly help to recruit and retain membership of lower paid
employees into the Scheme who, according to recent UNISON
research, find the costs of membership prohibitive.

41.  An example of the scope of a possible future regulatory amendment is
illustrated below. Under this example, members earning over £110,000
per year could pay a contribution rate of 10% of pay, and those below
in the next band (earning over £75,000) a rate of 8.5%. Meanwhile,
many members earning less than £22,001 p.a. would benefit from a
lower rate. The table is illustrative at this stage and does not represent
any firm commitment by Ministers.

42. Those earning between £30,001 to £75,000 per year would also have
to contribute more: +0.2% or +0.3%, to avoid “cliff edge” increases in
contributions within the tariff.

43. Subject to the outcome of any statutory consultation the new contribution
tariff could take effect from 1 April 2010.

Table 1 — Possible New Contribution Tariff
Band | Pay Range New Contribution Rate | Difference from current LGPS
(pay per year) rate
1 £0-£15,000 |5.5% No change for members earning
up to £12,000 per year
-0.3% for members earning from
£12,001 to £14,000

2a £15,001 to 6.0% +0.1%

£18,000 This apparent anomaly is
justified by the significant
reduction in rate for Band 3
below

2b £18,001 to 6.0% -0.5%

£22,000

3 £22,001 to 6.5% No change

£30,000

4 £30,001 to 7.0% +0.2%

£40,000

5 £40,001 to | 7.5% +0.3%

£75,000

6 £75,001 to | 8.5% +1.0%

£100,000

7 £110,001+ 10.0% +2.5%

Yield = 6.42% of payroll




Responses

Page 67

44.

45.

46.

Consultees are invited to respond to this informal consultation exercise
no later, please, than 30 September and preferably by the middle of
September, if this is at all possible. The LGPS Policy Review Group will
be considering the paper in the course of its deliberations.

Responses should be sent to Richard McDonagh at the above address,
Zone 5/F6, or e-mail to richard.mcdonagh@communities.gsi.gov.uk.
Telephone for enquiries is 020 7944 4730.

If any consultees would like to meet to discuss the propositions in detail
and any other matter which stems from this exercise, could they please
contact Diana Abelson at diana.abelson@communities.gsi.gov.uk or by
telephone on 020 7944 5971, to make the necessary arrangements.

Yours sincerely

P

[g1q 4/0?*’%~

TBJ Crossley



Page 68
ADDRESSEES

The Chief Executive of:
County Councils (England)
Metropolitan Borough Councils (England)
Unitary Councils (England)
County and County Borough Councils in Wales
London Borough Councils
South Yorkshire Pensions Authority
Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council
Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council
City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council
South Tyneside Metropolitan Borough Council
Wolverhampton City Council
London Pension Fund Authority
Environment Agency
Police Authorities in England and Wales

Town Clerk, City of London Corporation
Clerk, South Yorkshire PTA
Clerk, West Midlands PTA

The Secretaries of:
Local Government Association
LGPC
Employers' Organisation for Local Government (LGE)
PPMA
CIPFA

Society of County Treasurers
Society of District Council Treasurers
Society of Welsh Treasurers
Society of Metropolitan Treasurers
Society of London Treasurers
Association of Consulting Actuaries
Association of London Councils

Trades Union Congress

UNISON

GMB/

UCATT

Aspect

Unite

NAPO

CIPFA
Audit Commission



Page 69 AP PLEN D X

P

This is Hymans Robertson LLP’s response to the consultation paper issued by CLG on 25 June 2009.

Securing the long-term sustainability and affordability of the LGPS is vital. Neither the new LGPS in
England and Wales, introduced from 1 April 2008, nor the proposed cost sharing measures to be
effective from 1 April 2010, are sufficient to achieve this. We therefore welcome CLG’s review of the
LGPS in England and Wales. This document sets out our views on the first stage in the review, which
relates to the near term, in particular the forthcoming triennial valuation of the Scheme.

We know how concerned our LGPS fund clients are about the outcome from the 2010 valuations and
that current budgetary constraints mean that council tax must rise or services be cut (neither of which
is politically acceptable) if there are further substantial increases in pension contributions. Over the
last 18 months, we have been working with clients to determine how to approach funding strategy in
today’s challenging economic environment. We are confident that local authority pension
contributions can be maintained at affordable levels following the 2010 valuations, within the current
regulatory framework. Our immediate reaction is therefore that no regulatory changes are
required to ensure stability of local authority contributions following the 2010 valuations.
However, as the leading provider of actuarial services to the LGPS, we believe that we have a
responsibility to help ensure all LGPS funds make informed decisions that best suit their
circumstances. We have therefore deliberately taken a positive approach to the consultation where it
supports administering authorities in making informed decisions. We also firmly believe that checks
and balances need to apply to the setting of the contribution strategy. Our response to the funding
consultation should be considered in that context.

regulatory framework for the funding of the LGPS:

The LGPS must retain the ambition of full funding. The public sector unfunded model is arguably
broken with some of the schemes requiring a regular top-up from Treasury to balance the books.
This situation has arisen because of demographic changes and a failure to recognise increasing
pension costs in employer contributions. It has now caught the imagination of many commentators
and we believe that it would be very damaging to the reputation of the LGPS if it were allowed to
become wholly or partly unfunded. This would transfer an even greater burden onto future
government finances (and taxpayers) at a time when benefit payments across the LGPS in England
are already rising faster than contributions” due to the changing profile of the membership, leading to
further inequity between generations of taxpayers.

" Based on CLG's own statistics, in percentage lerms - benefit expenditure rose by 10% from £4.8bn in 2008/07 to £5.2bn in
2007/08 compared to an 8% rise in contributions from £6.2bn in 2006/07 to £6.7bn in 2007/08

August 2009 1

Response to CLG’s consuitation on funding g acilgpsipspsiconsultation responsesi0alazs response (o clg consultation on funding final docx



Page 70

If employer contribution rates are held reasonably stable and local government employment
does not grow significantly, it is conceivable that benefit expenditure will exceed contribution
income within 10 years. This significantly weakens the “liquidity” argument for making the
scheme unfunded or partially funded. It supports our view that the funded status of the
scheme with a 100% solvency target must be maintained.

We believe that it is possible to manage the outcome of the 2010 valuations to the satisfaction of local
authorities and CLG, i.e. by setting employer contributions for local authorities which are not
materially changed from current levels. However, in order to do so, the funding framework must be
based on long-term principles. It is not desirable to adopt a short term approach to the setting of
contribution rates (j.e. increasing the rates substantiaily) because of near term financial conditions.
This is particularly true if we consider the immediate impact that would have on front line services.
Conversely, it is not possible to continually adopt short-term measures at successive valuations as a
means of obscuring the longer term issue: the increasing cost of the benefits due to longer life
expectancy and lower real interest rates.

Irrespective of the outcome of this consultation on the forthcoming valuation, CLG must
address the cost of the scheme and take forward the benefit design phase of the consultation
to secure the long-term sustainability of the scheme.

3%

A valid comparison of funding levels and contribution rates across funds can only achieved by
comparing results on a consistent basis of measurement. LGPS funds cannot currently measure
themselves against their peers, because of the inconsistency of the actuarial bases and pace of
funding. A conservatively managed scheme with a faster pace of funding may be in much better
financial health than a scheme using less prudent assumptions; but simple peer group comparison
using inconsistent bases may show the opposite. We understand that GAD produces a review of
funding bases for CLG; however, this is not currently published and hence does not help funds
understand their relative position. We are not advocating a common funding basis; the level of
contributions and pace of funding will still be set locally. However, the requirement to report on a
prescribed benchmark basis would enable administering authorities, employers and other
stakeholders to assess the relative reliance of individual schemes’ contribution strategies on aspects
such as future investment retums

In the interests of transparency and to assist in risk assessment, the funding framework
should require disclosure of assets and liabilities on a consistent prescribed basis across the
LGPS?, as well as on each fund’s individual funding basis.

Scheme benefits are funded through a combination of contributions and investment returns.
Traditional actuarial techniques place a single value on pension scheme liabilities and compare this to
the value of assets to measure a scheme’s solvency. The weakness of this approach is that it does
not measure how likely itis that the fund will have sufficient assets to meet its future benefit promises.

“Itis not essential, or even desirable, for the bases to be identical, as long as the key assumplions, iL.e. the inancial
assumptions and post-retirement longevity assumptions are the same.

August 2009 2

Response to CLG's consultation on funding g lactigpsipspsiconsitation responsesi0BOB2E response to dig consultation on funding fina! doox




Page 71

The approach which we are proposing to use for the 2010 valuations (and beyond) begins with
applying the traditional approach to deliver objective measurement of the financial health of the fund.
Crucially, however, it then combines this with a stochastic risk assessment which considers how the
financial position of the fund may develop under a range of different possible outcomes; and gives an
indication of how likely it is that the fund will return to full funding over various time periods. We
believe that this type of risk-based approach will become best practice in the private sector and
should be embraced by the LGPS. This also adds to the confidence that administering authorities
can have when considering the risks inherent in their contribution strategy and pace of funding.

Greater analysis of funding and investment risks should be required as an integral part of the
development of funding strategy. This will ensure funds fully understand the potential
implications of their decisions and should ensure better decision-making.

it Hah t
Whilst local authority employers may account for the majority of LGPS assets and liabilities there are
many other employers which participate in the scheme, whose characteristics are very different from
focal authorities in terms of their time horizon and security of covenant. CLG's consultation is devoid
of detail (perhaps deliberately) on how admission bodies and other shorter-term or less secure
employers should be dealt with.

Any change in the funding framework in which LGPS funds operate must permit, perhaps even
require, an approach which is sufficiently flexible to cater for the different circumstances of
different employers. Further, bodies which are funded by tax-payers must be required to
quantify the level of their exposure to funding risks in relation to the pension benefits of other
employers.

In our view a valid criticism of public sector pensions policy is that all too often policymakers
misinterpret the relatively low employer contribution rates payable in public sector schemes (relative
to rates payable in private sector schemes providing comparable benefits) as reflecting a lower cost of
benefits. The lower rates are not a reflection of benefit cost; they largely reflect the fact that private
sector schemes are addressing the cost of benefits at a faster pace than in the public sector.
Administering authorities and CLG must appreciate the distinction between the contributions payable
by employers and the cost of the benefits: paying a lower contribution rate, (at least for now) does not
make the benefits cheaper to provide!

This distinction could be better reflected by requiring funds to consider explicitly how variable
pension costs might be and how the contribution strategy deals with that variability as part of
the valuation process. For example, the analysis could consider the effect of investment
returns or life expectancy which were higher or lower than the valuation assumptions,

August 2009 3

Response to CLG’s consultation on funding gactigpsipspsiconsultation responsesi0s0826 response to clg consultation on funding finat.doex




Page 72

Whilst the positive cashflows which generally characterise LGPS funds have proved beneficial in the
current economic climate since funds have not been forced sellers of assets whose prices have
plummeted, we are concerned at the consultation paper’s suggestion that this liquidity is a justifiable
reason for softening funding targets. In particular, the use of language such as it being “questionable
whether fund authorities need to build up.... a financial reserve” worries us, appearing as it does, to
question the very structure of the LGPS as a funded arrangement. The principle of a funded
arrangement is to pay for benefits as they accrue, in contrast to unfunded arrangements where
benefits are paid from revenue and there inevitably comes a point where the scheme becomes
unsustainable without significant additional funding/contributions. Whilst the unfunded public sector
schemes may appear to be more affordable this is merely a function of the opaque way in which their
costs are accounted for and it would be a travesty if the LGPS were to abandon the funded model that
has hitherio served it so well,

Trustees in the private sector are currently required to produce a statement of funding principles and,
if the scheme is in deficit, a separate recovery plan detailing how the trustees and sponsor plan to
achieve full funding and the period over which they aim for this to be achieved. It is not clear from the
consultation paper whether the suggested financing plans would perform the same function as the
recovery plan in the private sector, but, on the face of it, the proposals seem sensible. In particular,
we support the suggestion that a financing plan could include projections of benefit cashflows and
asset information and would suggest that these cashflow projections include information on the
chance of particular outcomes occurring, rather than simply illustrating a number of potential
scenarios with no information on how likely those scenarios are. We are also very supportive of any
proposals to incorporate risk management analysis within the financing plan, although this could be
achieved through the existing funding strategy statement, with updated guidance on the content of
these statements..

One potential drawback of the proposed financing plan is the potentially limited extent to which it
could allow for the specific circumstances of individual employers. To rectify this, we would suggest
that asset and liability projections be included within the financing plan for the following groups of
smployers, in addition to reporting at a whole fund level as suggested in the consultation document:

¢ local authorities and government sponisored bodies (this could be extended to include all
scheduled bodies);

¢ transferee admission bodies and community admission bodies with a guarantor;
» admission bodies with no guarantor or other security; and
« former employers (i.e. assets and liabilities which are effectively “orphaned” within the fund),

where the projections would be over a period or periods which are reflective of the likely future period
of participation of the group of employers.

In order to ensure that financing plans are good quality, helpful documents and that there is
consistency between funds, we would propose that any regulatory requirements are supplemented by
guidance, such as that produced by CIPFA on the funding strategy statements.

August 2009 4

Response to CLG's consultation on funding glactigpsipspsiconsultation responses\080826 response to clg consultation on funding final docx



Page 73

In addition {o disclosing the valuation results on the funding basis, we would also propose that funds
be required to disclose the funding level on a consistent basis to enable the level of prudence adopted
by different funds to be readily compared. This funding level need not be used to determine the
fund’s solvency measure or employer contribution rates but would instead act as a limit on the extent
to which funds subjugate prudence and soivency in favour of affordability and stability.

Any requirements to draw up a financing plan must improve transparency of funding and the
valuation process, demonstrably contributing to good governance in the LGPS. They must
not simply be used as a short-term fix to permit infinitely long deficit recovery periods and
hence ensure an acceptable outcome for the 2010 valuations.

Representatives from CLG have made it very clear that the suggestion of local funding targets is not
in any way a return to the 75% funding regime which was introduced alongside the community charge
in the 1980s. Itis unfortunate, however, that on reading the consultation document, this subtlety
passed many people by, including us. Irrespective of CLG’s clarification, it seems to us that such an
approach will inevitably lead to accusations of softening funding bases and to the LGPS being subject
to many of the same criticisms of a lack of objective assessment of cost that are currently made of the
unfunded schemes. For this reason alone we would reject the concept of a local funding target that
does not necessarily aim to have sufficient assets to meet promised benefit payments.

We would also note that local funding targets already exist since there are a variety of different
methods and assumptions being used to place a value on the assets and liabilities of LGPS
funds, leading to very different solvency targets. We are concerned that these differences are not
understood by the funds themselves. Further, we believe that it would be very helpful for all funds to
publish their funding level on a consistent basis to help measure the degree of prudence within the
bases adopted. We are aware that CLG currently commissions the Government Actuary's
Department to undertake an audit of valuation bases, and it would be helpful if this were published.
Although there are valuation surveys undertaken by interested parties, such as the Society of County
Treasurers, these are skewed by the different bases adopted and do not cover all LGPS funds. We
therefore believe that it would be beneficial to the funds themselves, if they were able benchmark their
own position against their peers on a like-for-like basis. Although not within CLG'’s remit, we believe
that it would also be helpful for the other public sector schemes to report their liabilities on the same
basis. We would also note that, in the private sector, the Pensions Regulator assesses the valuation
bases adopted by trustees and investigates any which it considers to be inadequate.

Given the public and media interest in public sector pensions and the need to demonstrate
good governance and transparency of funding, a comparison of funding approaches,
assessed using a consistent basis, should be published. Further, CLG should consider
whether its role should more closely mirror that of the Regulator in the private sector. There is
also a strong argument for extending this to other public sector schemes.

The consultation paper suggests an amendment to the employee contribution rate tariffs introduced
from 1 April 2008 to increase the percentage of pay rates for those earning above £30,000 per annum
and to reduce the rates for the lower paid. We understand that the rationale for this is to make the
scheme fairer for the lower paid, many of whom currently opt out of the scheme. Total employee
contributions to the scheme are not intended to change.

August 2009 5

Response to CLG's consultation on funding glachigpsipspsiconsultation responses\CB0826 response fo ¢ig consultation on funding final. dosx




Page 74

We are not supportive of the proposed amendments for the following reasons:

e further changes so soon after the recent changes are likely to cause disproportionate
administrative headaches and member confusion;

® there is no evidence that a 0.3% p.a. reduction in the employee contribution rate for those
earning between £12,001 and £15,000 would have any effect in terms of encouraging those
who have opted out of the scheme to join it;

s given the existence of means-tested state pension benefits it is debatable whether CLG should
be trying to encourage lower paid members into the scheme, further analysis is required; and

® the biggest differential in earnings between the public and private sector is amongst those on
the highest grades. Further increases in employee contribution rate of 1% for those eaming
over £75,000 and 2.5% for those earning over £100,000 will either make it more difficult to
recruit and retain officers at the highest level or will lead to increased pressure on pay levels
which, if it leads to higher pay, would increase past service liabilities and hence extra pension
costs for employers.

We would also note that the final salary structure of the scheme favours those with high pay increases
rather than the higher paid per se.

In our view, improving fairness of the scheme should be tackied in a further stage of CLG’s
review of the LGPS via the benefit structure rather than through the employee contribution
scale.

We support the concept of financing plans, including, a requirement for a risk assessment to be
carried out, if these demonstrably improve transparency and governance. However, we note that this
could be achieved within the existing regulatory framework through revised guidance on the funding
strategy statements rather than through new regulations.

We do not support local funding targets and note that these already exist (although this may not be
well understood).

We are not supportive of the proposals relating to a revised contribution tariff for employees.

Assets and liabilities of LGPS funds should be assessed and disclosed on a consistent basis to
enable all stakeholders 1o validly compare different funding approaches.

The funding framework must have an increased focus on the interaction between contributions and
investment strategy and require a meaningful degree of risk assessment and disclosure.

The funding framework should increase the disclosure of risks relating to employers who are not
directly funded by taxpayers.

Whatever measures are put in place to secure a satisfactory outcome from the 2010 valuations from a
local authority / taxpayer perspective, it must be clear that they do not obviate the need to review the
benefit structure to secure the longer-term affordability and sustainability of the scheme.

August 2009 6

Response to CLG’s consuitation on funding g \achlgpsipspsiconsultation responsesi080826 response to clg consultation on funding final docx




. Page 75 Agenda Item 10
=

Haringey .

Agenda item: | [N ') ]

Pensions Committee On 17" Sept 2009

Report Title: Fund Administration Update

Report of Assistant Chief Executive People and Organisational Development

e

5/\‘% A /

R Y

Signed D f‘j\:}
Stuart Young

Assistant Chief Executive P.O.D

Contact Officer : | M Benson Pensions Manager (0208 489 3824 )

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non Key Decision

1. Purpose of the Report (That is, the decision required)

1.1 To consider regulatory changes affecting the administration of the Local Government
Pension Scheme together with relevant issues covered in circulars issued by the
Local Government Pensions Committee (LGPC) and Department for Communities
and Local Government (DCLG).

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)

3. State links with Council Plan Priorities and actions and / or other Strategies
3.1 Review of AVC Providers by Hymans Robertson

3.1.1 Hymans Robertson were asked to carry out a review of the Fund’s AVC Providers as part
of our due diligence in monitoring the AVC scheme.

3.1.2 A Briefing Note is attached as Appendix 1.

31.3 The Council’s AVC Providers are Prudential and Clerical & Medical. Since publication of
the report, Clerical & Medical have announced the merger of their sales force with
Scottish Widows as a first step towards combining both companies under the Scottish
Widows brand.

3.1.4 In summary the report recommends that our current Providers are retained and that
action is taken to both raise the profile of AVCs as a means of providing additional
benefits on retirement and to actively engage with Prudential in monitoring their
investment performance which is below that of its competitors.

3.1.5 Arrangements are in hand to meet with the Providers to stimulate a coordinated
approach to communicating the AVC option to the membership and to monitor




Page 76

investment performance.

3.2 Local Government Emplover’s (LGE) Response to DWP Consultation on Auto
Enrolment.

3.2.1 DWP have published draft regulation for auto-enrolment into pension schemes expected
to be in force from 2012.

3.2.2 Inthe LGPS auto enrolment currently applies to new recruits employed on a contract for
three months or more. If the employee chooses to opt-out with the initial three month
period, contributions are refunded.

3.2.3 Under the proposed rules for auto-enrolment, an opt-out from auto enrolment must
exercised within 30 days of the member joining or receipt of enrolment information
whichever is later.

3.2.3 Currently Opt-out forms are provided by the Employing Bodies. The LGE in their
response argue that the proposal for opt-out forms to be provided by the Pension
Scheme would be administratively onerous and costly.

3.2.4 Nationally some 36% of eligible members choose not to join the LGPS. These tend to be
low paid part-time females and If opt-out forms have to be issued by the Pension
Scheme and a significant number of potential optants —out miss the tight deadline, this,
the LGE argue will lead to a significant increase in employer costs.

4 Recommendations

4.2 That the Administration Report update be noted

4.3 That no change is made to the Fund’s AVC Providers

4.4 That Prudential and Clerical & Medical are invited to discuss ways in which
awareness of the AVC Scheme can be increased and that investment performance
can be monitored.

5 Reason for Recommendations
5.1 Not applicable

6 Other options considered
6.2 Not applicable

7 Summary
7.1 This report updates the Committee on general administration issues arising from the
Local Government Pension Scheme.

8 Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1. The Chief Financial Officer concurs with the financial implications paragraph

9 Head of Legal Services Comments

9.1. The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report and has
no specific comment to make

10 Head of Procurement

10.1 (Not Applicable)




Page 77

11 Equalities & Community cohesion Comments

11.1 Of the 36% of eligible employees who opt out of the LGPS, the majority are Part-
time female employees in low paid employment.

12 Consultation
12.2The employees side have been consulted..

13 Service Financial Comments

13.2 As Haringey Council is the largest employer in the Fund, as well as being the
scheme administrator the impact of the rule requiring opt-out forms to be issued by
the Pension Scheme will be minimal

13.3 Any costs required to raise awareness of the AVC scheme will be borne by the AVC
Providers

14 Use of appendices / Tables and photographs

Appendix 1 is the Briefing Note on the AVC Providers Review Report from
Hymans Robertson

15 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

( List background documents)
(also list reasons for exemption or confidentiality (if applicable)
15.1 Hymans Robertson AVC Providers Review




Page 78

Appendix 1

Haringey Council Pension Fund
Hymans Robertson AVC Review Report -- Briefing Note

Introduction:

Hymans Robertson have completed their review of the Haringey Council AVC Scheme.
This was requested as part of our obligation to exercise due diligence in monitoring our
AVC Providers.

The AVC Option

The new HMRC tax regime which came into effect in April 2006 allowed greater
flexibility both in terms of contribution limits and in converting AVC funds to tax free
cash. In many cases, members can now convert the whole of their AVC fund to cash.

At the same time the LGPS regulations changed the accrual on benefits from 1/80"
Pension plus 3/80ths Lump Sum to a 1/60™ pension and no automatic lump sum. The
purchase of added membership was replaced by the option to purchase added units of
pension which cannot be converted to cash.

The option to pay AVCs is therefore likely to become more attractive to members who
want to build up extra pension and or have an option to take tax free cash.

AVC Accounts

The Fund has two active Providers (Prudential and Clerical and Medical) as well as
Equitable Life which does not accept new business.

Prudential has 96 accounts; Clerical and Medical has two accounts and Equitable Life
has 47. These represent 0.8% of the Fund membership which Hymans consider to be
low and is lower than other Funds for which they have carried out reviews.

Providers

Of the Providers operating in the area of AVC schemes, Prudential stands out as the
most committed and proactive. Prudential have a dedicated LGPS website and call
centre team which is trained to answer day to day questions from LGPS scheme
members. They also handle all aspects of the application process.

Clerical and Medical have indicated that while they are not seeking new business in this
area, they will continue to support existing clients.

The review found that Prudential apart, the other Life Officers did not display any
particular commitment to marketing or promoting AVCs to local government scheme
members.

The report refers to Scottish Widows which it says does have a strong AVC profile
although it has only a small client base within the local government scheme.

Investment Options

An extract from Hewitt and Bacon’s AVC Review 2008 showing investment returns for
the main Providers is attached.

While the performance coming from Prudential is considered ‘reasonable’ Hymans
caution against a switch to a higher performing Provider who is less proactive then
Prudential. They suggest opening a dialogue with Prudential to better understand the
underlying reasons for current performance and to seek assurances on steps being
taken to ensure steady improvement over time.

Hymans consider that the range of investment options on offer by Prudential may be to
many and that this may act to inhibit the member from opting to pay AVCs .



Page 79
Pricing
Overall Prudential has much lower charges then the other Providers in the LGPS market
place. (0.65% for internal funds and 0.75% for BGI's passive funds.

Other Providers charge 1% for passive funds although Scottish Widows are slightly
cheaper.

Conclusions
Investment

The review does not suggest a change away from Prudential. It’s lacklustre investment
performance is counterbalanced by its strong focus and commitment to the LGPS AVC
market.

Hymans recommend that we open a dialogue with Prudential to understand why they
are underperforming and to seek assurances on what steps they are taking to improve
over the longer term. The investment options being offered to members should be
reduced to allow potential members to better focus on the choices available.

Take-up of AVCs

In some measure the low take up of Prudential AVCs can be linked back to data
protection concerns around providing Prudential with our active members names and
addresses. These matters have now been resolved to the satisfaction of our Data
Protection Team.

Clerical and Medical / Scottish Widows

The low take up of AVCs through Clerical and Medical is explained by their decision not
to seek new AVC business.

Scottish Widows are highlighted in the report as having a positive LGPS focus in
marketing AVCs albeit their penetration into the market is very small.

However since the review was concluded, Scottish Widows and Clerical and Medical
have announced that from 1t July 2009, they will have one combined sales force and
that over time they will integrate under the Scottish Widows brand.

Recommendations

That a dialogue is opened with Prudential to discuss Investment Performance on an on-
going basis.

That the investment options made available by Prudential are reviewed

In conjunction with the above, Prudential and Clerical Medical / Scottish widows are
invited to discuss ways and means of increasing awareness of the AVC scheme.

I M Benson
Pensions Manager
17 August 2009



Page 80

Appendix 2

Haringey Council
Pension Fund

Early and Flexible Retirements 1 April 2009 to 30" June 2009

Number of

Haringey Council Basic Capital Cost of Added Total Cost
Cases Cost Years
Early Retirement 1 £13,400 £0 £ 13,400
Flexible Retirement 2 £0 £0
Sub -Total 3 £13,400 £0 £13,400
Employing Number of | Basic Capital Cost of Added Total Cost
Bodies Cases Cost Years
Early Retirement 0 £0 £0 £0
Flexible Retirement 0 £0 £0 £0
Sub-Total 0 £0 £0 £0
Total For Haringey Council and Employing Bodies
Total Q1 09/10 3 £13,400 £0 £13,400
Total Q1 08/09 4 £119,000 £0 £119,000

The discretion to release benefits early has been exercised in accordance with the
relevant employing bodies Policy Statement and the Capital costs have been paid into
the Fund within the timescale agreed by the Fund actuary.

Appeals Report to Quarter ending 30" June 2009

Appeals Process Quarterly Report Number | Upheld Not Upheld/ On
Open Closed Going

Stage 1 Appeal 0 0 0

Stage 2 Appeal 0 0 0

Pensions Ombudsman 0 0 0




Page 81

Appendix 3
Receipt of contributions from employing bodies;

Employing bodies are informed that they have a statutory duty to remit pension
contributions to the Fund no later then the 19" of the month following the month in
which the deductions are made.

For the quarter ending 30" June 2009, the receipt of contributions from the
Employing Bodies and Schools with their own Payroll Providers has been checked
by Corporate Finance and payments have been received within the statutory time-
limit.

Appendix 4
Pensions Scheme Regulations The scheme is administered in compliance

with the provisions of the scheme
regulations and relevant advice.

Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations (as amended)

Data Protection Data held on records maintained by the
Pensions Team is registered in
compliance with the relevant Data
Protection Legislation

Disclosure of Information The scheme is administered in compliance
with the Disclosure of Information
Regulations 1996 (as amended) and
relevant advice.

The Occupational Pensions
Schemes (Disclosure of Information)
Regulations 1996

Member Communication Communication with members and
employers is conducted in accordance
with the Communications Policy approved
by Pensions Panel on 23 June 2008

Best Practice The scheme is administered having regard
to the Best Practice Principles published
by the UKSC

Settiement of employee benefits:

Employee benefits are settled within 10 working days of all paperwork being
received in line with performance standards approved and monitored by the Head of
Personnel



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 83 Agenda Item 11

=

Haringey

Agenda item: [ N O ]
Pensions Committee On 17" September 2009

Report Title: Cessation of Admission Agreement with Workforce Facilities Ltd

Report of Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Chief Executive People and
Organisational Development

Signed

Signed

Chief Financial Officer

Contact Officer : | M Benson Pensions Manager 0208 489 3824

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non Key Decision

1. Purpose of the Report (That is, the decision required)

1.1To report on the funding position attributable to Workforce Facilities Ltd on their
cessation as an admitted body to the Haringey Pension Fund at 7*" May 2009

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)

3. State links with Council Plan Priorities and actions and / or other Strategies

3.1 Workforce Facilities Ltd were contracted to provide security services to Alexandra
Palace from 7! April 2009. The company was admitted to participate in the Haringey
Council Pension Fund from that date.

3.2 On 7" May 2009, Workforce Facilities Ltd was acquired by Europa Workspace Ltd
when its parent company went into liquidation. This automatically brought the
admission agreement to an end.

3.3 On the cessation of an Admission Agreement, the Council as the Administering
Authority is required to obtain a cessation report from the Fund actuary.

3.4 The one active member of the LGPS who was employed by Workforce Facilities Ltd
was TUPE transferred to Europa Workspace Ltd on the 8" May 2009. The legal
process for transference of the contract for the provision security services is
currently ongoing.

3.5 The report from Hymans Robertson shows that Workforce Facilities Ltd had accrued




Page 84

a small surplus on termination of the agreement amounting to £6000. There is no
provision in the scheme regulations which allows this surplus to be refunded and it
therefore remains in the fund.

4. Recommendations

4.1 .That the settlement of the £6000 surplus attributed to Workforce Facilities Ltd on
the cessation of the admission agreement be noted .

5. Reason for Recommendations

5.1 The Council as the Administering Authority is required to obtain a Cessation Report
from the Fund actuary to identify the liability if any attributable to the former admitted
body.

6. Other options considered
6.1 None

7. Summary

7.1 To report on the cessation of the Admission Agreement with Workforce Facilities Ltd
and the settlement of the accrued surplus in the Fund

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1 The Chief Financial Officer concurs with the financial implications paragraph

9. Head of Legal Services Comments

9.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report and has
no specific comment to make. The content of the report and its recommendation fall
within the statutory framework governing the cessation of an admission agreement

10.Head of Procurement

10.1 Not Applicable

11. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments
11.1 There are no equalities issues arising from this report

12.Consultation
12.1 The Employees Side have been consulted on the content of this report.

13. Service Financial Comments

13.1. The surplus of £6000 remains in the Fund. The fund actuary will take account of
this surplus at the next fund valuation at 31st March 2010 There are no other
financial implications

14.Use of appendices / Tables and photographs




Page 85

14.1 There are no appendices attached to this report.

15.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
( List background documents)

(also list reasons for exemption or confidentiality (if applicable)
London Borough of Haringey Cessation Valuation Workforce Facilities Ltd May 2008




Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 87 Agenda ltem 12

21
Haringey

Agenda iterﬁ: | [N o) ]

Pensions Committee On 17" September 2009

Report Title: Admission Agreement with Europa Workspace Solutions Ltd to the
Haringey Council Pension Fund

Report of Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Chief Executive People and
Organisational Development

Signed - »f\W

Assistant Chief Executive People and Organisational Development

Signed

z.

Chief Financial Officer

Contact Officer : | M Benson Pensions Manager 0208 489 3824
imbenson@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non Key Decision

1. Purpose of the Report (That is, the decision required)

1.1 To approve the admission of Europa Workspace Solutions Ltd as transferee admitted body
participating in the Haringey Council Pension Fund from 8th April 2009..

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)

3. State links with Council Plan Priorities and actions and / or other Strategies

3.1 On 1%t August 2002 Alexandra Palace Charitable Trust entered into a contract for security
services with Trident Security Ltd. later called Mittie Securities Ltd. This contract was
awarded to Workforce Facilities Ltd with effect from 7" April 2009. On 8" May 2009, the
company was acquired by Europa Workspace Solutions Ltd and the security contract was
novated to them by Alexandra Palace Trust

3.2 Of the three scheme members originally TUPE transferred to Trident Security Ltd, one
remains as an active member of the Fund. That employee has been TUPE transferred to
Europa Workspace Solutions Ltd.

3.3 This admission agreement is with a private contractor where service is being transferred by
means of a contract. The contractor is thereby a ‘transferee admission body’ as defined in
regulation 6 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Administration Regulations 2008.

3.4 The agreement will be a ‘closed agreement’ under which only the remaining member of the
LGPS who is employed on the contract, will be eligible for admission to the Local




Page 88

Government Pension Scheme. On this basis, the actuary has set the employer contribution
rate for future service at 28%. Changes increasing the required contribution rate are only
paid for by the contractor if they are changes they have made. All other consequential
contribution increases above 28% will be met by Alexandra Palace Charitable Trust.

3.5 The regulations require that the contractor provides an indemnity bond to protect the fund
should the agreement terminate early. The value of the Bond is determined by actuarial
assessment and is agreed between the parties. The review and provision of the Bond is an
employer cost. The Council’s actuary has put a value on the Bond of £26,000. The Bond
protects the Fund against potential early retirement on redundancy costs should the
company fail commercially

3.6 Any actions taken that require payment of a capital cost will be recovered through
the normal charging process. The actuary will take account of the contractor’s
discretionary policy including early and ill health retirements when setting it's
employer contribution rate at future fund valuations

3.7 As the arrangements for novating the contract from Workforce Facilities Ltd to
Europa Workspace Ltd are still under review Members are asked to approve the
delegation of final approval for this application to the Chief Financial Officer

4. Recommendations

4.1 That Members agree to the admission of Europa Workspace Solutions Ltd as a transferee
admitted body to the Fund from 8™ May 2009

4.2 That the agreement is a closed agreement such that no new members can be admitted.

4.3 That the contractor is required to provide a Bond to the value of £26,000 to be reviewed by
the Fund actuary on an annual basis.

4.4 That final approval to the terms of this Admission Agreement be delegated to the Chief
Financial Officer.

5. Reason for Recommendations
5.1 N/a.

6. Other options considered
6.1 None

7. Summary

7.1 This report seeks approval for the admission of Europa Workspace Solutions Ltd to
the Haringey Council Pension Fund.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1 The Chief Financial Officer concurs with the financial implications paragraph.

9. Head of Legal Services Comments

9.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report and has
no specific comment to make. The content of the report and its recommendations fall
within the statutory framework governing the setting up of an admission agreement where
an eligible person is employed by a transferee admission body




Page 89

10.Head of Procurement

10.1 Not Applicable

11. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments
11.1 There are no equalities issues arising from this report

12.Consultation
12.1. The Employees Side have been consulted on the content of this report.

13. Service Financial Comments

13.1 The Council’s actuary has assessed a contribution rate for the contractor as 28%
and a Bond value of £26,000 which will be reviewed annually. The Bond is in place
to protect the fund against the commercial failure of the company.

13.2 The contractor is required to meet future service costs as reflected in the above-
mentioned contribution rate. The past service deficit remains with the Charitable
Trust which will reimburse the Fund for any related costs

14.Use of appendices / Tables and photographs
14.1 There are no appendices attached to this report.

15.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
( List background documents)

(also list reasons for exemption or confidentiality (if applicable)
15.1 Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008

15.2 Report from Hymans Robertson on Bond and Contribution Rate Assessment.
Reasons why this report is exempt Not Applicable




Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 91 Agenda ltem 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Audit of Financial Statements 2008/09 and Report to those charged with governance in 2008/09
	6 Quarterly Asset Allocation Review
	7 Fund Performance Report
	9 Consultation draft - 'LGPS - Delivering Affordability, Viability and Fairness'
	10 Fund Administration Report (including review of AVC providers)
	11 Cessation of admission agreement with Workforce Facilities Ltd
	12 Admission agreement for Europa Ltd
	15 Exempt minutes

